codex alimentarius commission



FOOD AND AGRICULTURE ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED NATIONS





JOINT OFFICE: Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 ROME Tel: 39 06 57051 www.codexalimentarius.net Email: codex@fao.org Facsimile: 39 06 5705 4593

ALINORM 07/30/24 - Rev. 1

JOINT FAO/WHO FOOD STANDARDS PROGRAMME

CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION

Thirtieth Session Roma, Italy, 2 - 7 July 2007

REPORT OF THE THIRTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES

Beijing, China, 7 - 12 May 2007

Note: This report includes Codex Circular Letter CL 2007/15-PR

codex alimentarius commission



FOOD AND AGRICULTURE ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED NATIONS WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION



JOINT OFFICE: Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 ROME Tel: 39 06 57051 www.codexalimentarius.net Email: codex@fao.org Facsimile: 39 06 5705 4593

CX 4/40.2

CL 2007/15-PR May 2007

- TO: Codex Contact Points - Interested International Organizations
- FROM: Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy

SUBJECT: DISTRIBUTION OF THE REPORT OF THE THIRTY-NINTH SESSION OF THE CODEX COMMITTEE ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (ALINORM 07/30/24)

The report of the Thirty-ninth Session of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues will be considered by the 30th Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission (Roma, Italy, 2 - 7 July 2009).

PART A: MATTERS FOR FINAL ADOPTION BY THE 30TH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION:

1. DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES AT STEP 8 (ALINORM 07/30/24, APPENDIX II); AND

2. PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES AT STEPS 5/8 (ALINORM 07/30/24, APPENDIX III)

Governments and interested international organizations wishing to propose amendments or comments on the above Draft MRLs and Proposed Draft MRLs at Step 8 and Step 5/8 should do so in writing, preferably by email, to the Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail, codex@fao.org) before 15 June 2007.

3. CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES RECOMMENDED FOR REVOCATION AND FOR DISCONTINUATION OF WORK (ALINORM 07/30/24, APPENDIX V AND APPENDIX IX)

Governments and interested international organizations wishing to comment on the proposed revocations (Appendix V) or discontinuation of work on the draft MRLs (Appendix IX) should do so in writing, preferably by email, to the Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail, codex@fao.org) before 15 June 2007.

PART B: MATTERS FOR PROVISIONAL ADOPTION BY THE 30TH SESSION OF THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION:

PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES AT STEP 5 (ALINORM 07/30/24, APPENDIX IV)

Governments and interested international organizations are invited to submit comments, including the implications which the Proposed Draft Maximum Residue Limits may have for their economic interest, and should do so in writing in conformity with the Procedures for the Elaboration of Codex Standards and Related Texts (at Step 5) (*Codex Alimentarius Procedural Manual, Sixteenth Edition*) preferably by email to the Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail: codex@fao.org) **before 15 June 2007**.

PART C: REQUEST FOR COMMENTS AND INFORMATION ON:

1. DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES AT STEP 6 (ALINORM 07/30/24, APPENDIX VII)

Those countries and observers specified under individual compounds in the ALINORM 07/30/24 concerning matters related to the FAO Panel of the JMPR (GAP, residue evaluation, intake assessment etc.) on specific pesticide/commodity(ies) to be considered by JMPR 2007 are invited to send information or data to: **1**) Ms Yong Zhen YANG, Agricultural Officer and JMPR Secretary, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, Rome 00153, Italy, Fax:+39 06 57053224, E-mail: YoungZhen.Yang@fao.org ; **2**) Dr Zongmao CHEN, Chairperson of the Committee, Academician, Chinese Academy of Engineering, Professor, Chinese Academy of Agricultural Sciences, No.1, Yunqi Road, Hangzhou/Zhejiang 310008, P.R. CHINA, Fax: +86 571 8665 0056, Email: ccprc@agri.gov.cn ; and **3**) Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme,Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail: codex@fao.org) by **15 June 2007**.

Those countries and observers specified under individual compounds in the ALINORM 07/30/24 concerning matters related to the future JMPR meetings (GAP, residue evaluation, intake assessment etc.) on specific pesticide/commodity(ies) to be considered at subsequent years by JMPR, are invited to send information or data **one year before** JMPR considers these compounds at the addresses indicated above.

The deadline for the submission of the concern form together with necessary data is 15 June 2007.

2. APPLICATION PRACTICES ON THE ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY OF ANALYTICAL RESULTS (ALINORM 07/30/24, paras 156-160)

While considering the above subject matter the Committee agreed to ask information from governments on application of practices currently in use at the national and regional level on measurement uncertainty in reporting test results and its application in relation to the risk management of pesticide residues in food.

Information on this subject should be sent preferably by an email to: Peter Josepf Brodesser, Food Safety Specialist Food and Environmental Protetion Section, Joint FAO/IAEA Division, P.O. Box 100, A-1400, Viena, Austria, fax: + 431 26007, email: j.brodesser@iaea.org with a copy to the Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail: codex@fao.org) **before 1 December 2007**.

3. METHODS USED FOR SEPARATION OF MILK FAT FROM WHOLE MILK (ALINORM 07/30/24, paras 165-166)

While considering this agenda item (for details of consideration see paras above), the Committee agreed to ask information on current practices for the analytical determination of fat-soluble pesticides in milk and milk fat.

Information on the above subject should be sent preferably by an email to: Peter Josepf Brodesser, Food Safety Specialist Food and Environmental Protetion Section, Joint FAO/IAEA Division, P.O. Box 100, A-1400, Viena, Austria, fax: + 431 26007, email: <u>i.brodesser@iaea.org</u> with a copy to the Secretary, Codex Alimentarius Commission, Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme, Viale delle Terme di Caracalla, 00153 Rome, Italy (fax: +39 06 57054593; e-mail: <u>codex@fao.org</u>) **before 1 November 2007**.

PART D: REQUEST FOR INFORMATION AND DATA TO BE SENT TO JOINT FAO/WHO MEETING ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES

1. RESIDUES AND TOXICOLOGICAL DATA REQUIRED BY JMPR FOR PESTICIDES SCHEDULED FOR EVALUATION OR PERIODIC RE-EVALUATION

Governments and interested international organizations are invited to send inventories of residue data for pesticides on the agenda of the JMPR. Inventories of information on use patterns or Good Agricultural Practices, residue data, national MRLs, etc. should be sent to Ms Yong Zhen YANG, Agricultural Officer and JMPR Secretary, Viale delle Terme di Caracolla, Rome 00153, Italy, Fax:+39 06 57053224, E-mail: YongZhen.Yang@fao.org before **1 September** of the year before the JMPR meeting where a pesticide of concern is scheduled to be evaluated and, submission of residue data should be well before the **end of February** of the same year as the JMPR meeting. Toxicological data should be sent to Dr Angelika TRITSCHER, WHO Joint Secretary to JMPR, International Programme on Chemical Safety, World Health Organization, 20 Avenue Appia, CH-1211 Geneva 27, Switzerland, Fax: +41 22 791 4848, E-mail: tritschera@who.int, at the date specified in the call for data (usually 30 November), to be published in October (see Appendix VIII of ALINORM 07/30/24).

2. **RESIDUES IN FOLLOW-UP CROPS**

The 2006 JMPR noted the occasional occurrence of high residues in rotational crops and since such residue levels may cause trade disruptions and may underestimate the dietary intake, JMPR had requested guidance on how this issue should be addressed. The Committee agreed to obtain information from member countries on how residues in follow-up crops, including the compound boscalid, are regulated at the national level, and that this information should be provided to JMPR for their consideration. The information should be sent to Ms Yong Zhen YANG, Agricultural Officer and JMPR Secretary, Viale delle Terme di Caracolla, Rome 00153, Italy, Fax:+39 06 57053224, E-mail: YongZhen.Yang@fao.org

by 30 November 2007 at the latest.

The summary and conclusions of the 39th Session of the Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues are as follows:

MATTERS FOR ADOPTION BY THE 30TH SESSION OF THE COMMISSION

The Committee recommended to the Commission:

- adoption of the draft and draft revised MRLs at Step 8 and proposed draft MRLs at Step 5/8 (paras 44-136, Appendix II and Appendix III);
- revocation of certain existing Codex MRLs (paras 44-136 and Appendix V);
- adoption of the proposed draft MRLs for certain commodities at Step 5 (paras 44-136 and Appendix IV);

Approval of the following new work

• Priority List for the establishment of MRLs for certain pesticides (paras 180 - 202 and Appendix VIII);

Discontinuation of the following work

• The Committee decided to discontinue the work on the establishment of MRLs for several pesticide/commodity combinations (see paras 44 – 136 and Appendix IX).

MATTERS FOR ADVICE BY THE COMMISSION

While considering the issue of the use of the Codex MRLs at national level, the Committee agreed to inform the Commission of the discussion and request its guidance and advice on how the issue should be addressed (paras 169 - 179).

MATTERS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMISSION

The Committee:

- agreed agreed that the list of methods for determination of pesticides would not be developed as a Codex document in the Step Procedure but would stay as repository list on the IAEA website (para. 164);
- agreed that no physical working group would be convened at the next session for the preparation of priority list of pesticides for the evaluation by the JMPR and that an electronic Working Group would be established for the preparation of Priority List of Compounds to be considered at the Plenary (paras 200 202); and
- agreed to consider the discussion paper on the separation of milk and milk fats and the methodology for the determination of fat soluble pesticides in milk and milk products (paras 165 166).

MATTERS OF INTEREST TO THE JMPR

The Committee:

- agreed that a CL be issued in order to obtain information from member countries on how residues in follow-up crops, including the compound boscalid, are regulated at the national level, and that this information should be provided to JMPR for their consideration (para. 35);
- agreed to forward an alternative GAP procedure to JMPR for consideration and advice (paras 41-43);
- decided to retain draft MRLs for dimethoate (027) for lettuce, head and peppers, sweet at Step 7, awaiting 2008 JMPR evaluation of alternative GAP (para. 57);
- requested JMPR to reconsider the statistical calculation used to derive the MRL for thiabendazole (065) for citrus at its next meeting (para 67);
- decided to retain the draft MRLs for carbendazim (072) for cherries; grapes; lettuce, head; mango; oranges, sweet, sour at Step 7, awaiting the response from the JMPR to the concern form submitted by the Delegation of EC with respect to the ARfD established by JMPR (para. 69);
- decided to maintain the proposed draft MRLs for chlorpyrifos-methyl (090) for barley, oats and

rice at Step 7 due to intake concerns awaiting the outcome of the periodic re-evaluation by the 2009 JMPR (para. 75);

- decided to maintain the proposed draft MRLs for methomyl (094) for Brassica vegetables, celery, fruiting vegetables, cucurbits, grapes and leafy vegetables at Step 7 awaiting the outcome of the 2008 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP) (para. 77);
- decided to retain the draft MRLs for acephate (095) for flowerhead brassicas and mandarins at Step 7 awaiting the outcome of the 2009 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP) (para. 78);
- decided to maintain the MRLs for carbofuran (096) for cantaloupe, cucumber, mandarin, oranges, sweet, sour; potato, squash, and sweet corn to Step 7 awaiting the evaluation by 2008 JMPR (para.80);
- decided to retain the draft MRLs for methamidophos (100) for flowerhead brassicas and mandarins at Step 7 awaiting the outcome of the 2009 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP) for acephate (095) (para. 82);
- decided to return the MRLs for phosmet (103) for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruits, nectarine and pomme fruits to Step 6 due to intake concerns waiting the evaluation by JMPR 2007 (alternative GAP) (para. 89);
- noted that three manufacturers would submit residue data to JMPR on cypermethrins (including alpha and zeta cypermethrin) for consideration by the 2008 JMPR (para. 97);
- decided to retain the draft MRLs for oxamyl (126) for citrus fruits; cucumber; melons, except watermelon and peppers at Step 7 awaiting the JMPR review (alternative GAP) in 2008 (para.99);
- decided to retain the draft MRL for prochloraz (142) for mushrooms at Step 7 due to acute intake concerns, awaiting 2009 JMPR evaluation (para. 104);
- decided to return the draft MRLs for fenproxymate (193) for apple and grapes to Step 6 because of acute intake concerns, awaiting the outcome of the 2007 JMPR review of the ARfD (para. 115);
- decided to retain the proposed draft MRLs for haloxyfop (194) for cattle kidney; cattle liver; cattle meat and cattle milk at Step 4 and all draft MRLs at Step 7, awaiting the outcome of the 2009 JMPR evaluation (para. 116);
- noted that indoxacarb has been scheduled for evaluation by 2007 JMPR (alternative GAP) (para. 127);
- noted that the JMPR would re-evaluate the animal dietary burden for quinoxyfen at its 2007 meeting (para. 134);
- decided to retain the draft MRL for dimethoate (027) and oxamyl for dried chili peppers at Step 7, pending the 2008 JMPR evaluation of data on peppers (alternative GAP) (paras 137 and 139);
- agreed to refer the paper CX/PR 07/39/8 and other relevant documents such as CRD 22, to the JMPR (para. 179);
- noted that calls for data for future JMPR meetings would include requests for submission of available national and regional evaluations supporting the worksharing approach, including access to all relevant original studies (para. 216);
- agreed with proposals in order to ensure timely availability of the JMPR report and to facilitate consideration of MRLs in the Committee (para 224).

MATTERS OF INTEREST TO OTHER CODEX COMMITTEES CCGP

In relation to the recommendation from the 24th Session of the Committee on General Principles that the MRLs Periodic Review Procedure should be reviewed in the light of more recent documents related to the MRL setting process and consider whether this procedure should be published in the Procedural Manual, the Committee noted that this matter should be discussed in more detail on the basis of a paper to be prepared for consideration at the next session of the Committee (para. 11).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Paragraphs

INTRODUCTION	1
OPENING OF THE SESSION	2-3
DIVISION OF COMPETENCE	
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA (AGENDA ITEM 1)	
APPOINTMENT OF RAPPORTEURS (AGENDA ITEM 2)	9
MATTERS REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE BY THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS	0.15
COMMISSION AND/OR OTHER CODEX COMMITTEES (AGENDA ITEM 3) 10)-15
REPORT ON GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS BY THE 2006 JOINT FAO/WHO MEETINGS ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (AGENDA ITEM 4)	5-40
PROPOSED PROCESS FOR EXAMINATION OF ALTERNATIVE GAP WHEN ACUTE INTAKE CONCENRS ARE IDENTIFIED BY JMPR (AGENDA ITEM 4 (A)4	1-43
DRAFT AND PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES	
IN FOODS AND FEEDS, INCLUDING DRIED CHILI PEPPERS AT STEPS 7 AND 4 (AGENDA ITEM 5)	141
GENERAL REMARKS	
Captan (007)	
Caldaryi (008)	
Diazinon (022)	
Dicofol (026)	
Dimethoate (027)	
Endosulfan (032)	
Fenitrothion (037)	
Fentin (041)	
Malathion (049)	
Parathion-methyl (059)	
Thiabendazole (065)	
Cyhexatin (061)	
Carbendazim (072)	
Disulfoton (074)	
Fenamiphos (085)	
Pyrimophos-methyl (086)	
Chlorpyrifos-methyl (090)	75
Methomyl (094)	5-77
Acephate (095)	3-79
Carbofuran (096))-81
Methamidophos (100)82	2-85
Pirimicarb (101)	
Phosmet (103)	89
Dithiocarbamates (105)	90
Phorate (112)	1-92

Propargit (113)	93-94
Aldicarb (117)	95-96
Cypermethrins (including alpha and zeta cypermethrin) (118)	97
Oxamyl (126)	
Metalaxyl (138)	100-102
Prochloraz (142)	103-104
Carbosulfan (145)	
Propamocarb (148)	106-107
Cyfluthrin/betacyfluthrin (157)	
Propiconazole (160)	
Oxydemeton-methyl (166)	110-111
Cyromazine (169)	
Fenpropathrin (185)	113-114
Fenproximate (193)	115
Haloxyfop (194)	116
Esfenvalerate (204)	117-119
Imidacloprid (206)	
Metoxyfenozide (209)	121-122
Pyraclostrobin (210)	
Fludioxonil (211)	124-125
Metalaxyl-M (212)	
Indoxacarb (216)	127-128
Bifenazate (219)	129-130
Boscalid (221)	131-132
Quinoxyfen (222)	133-134
Thiacloprid (223)	135-136
RECOMMENDED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDIUE LIMITS FOR PESTIIDES IN/ON	
DRIED CHILI PEPERS AND SPICES	
DRIED CHILI PEPPERS	137-139
Dimethoate (027)	
Methamidophos (100)	
Oxamyl	139
SPICES	
Mevinphos	140-141
PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS	1 (0, 1 50)
AND ANIMAL FEEDS (AGENDA ITEM 6)	
ALLOCATION OF FOOD CLASSIFICATION CODES FOR CERTAIN SPICES:	
MATTERS RELATED TO METHODS OF ANALYSIS AND SAMPLING:	
Discussion Paper on Application of Practices on the Estimation of Uncertainty of Results (Agenda Item 7(A))	
Proposed Draft Revision of the List of Methods for Pesticide Residue Analysis	
(Agenda Item 7(B))	161-164

Discussion Paper on Methods of Analysis for Fat-Soluble Pesticides in Whole Milk and Milk Fat (Agenda Item 7(C))	165-166
Other Matters	
ESTABLISHMENT OF MRLS FOR PROCESSED OR READY-TO-EAT FOODS (AGENDA ITEM 8)	169-179
ESTABLISHMENT OF CODEX PRIORITY LIST FOR PESTICIDES (AGENDA ITEM	
9)	
Scheduling of compounds	181-196
Fifteen-Year Rule for Periodic Re-evaluation	197198
Modification of Prioritization Criteria	
Scheduling of the ad hoc Working Group Considerations	200-202
DISCU8SSION PAPER ABOUT ENFORCEMENT OF CODEX MRLS (AGENDA ITEM 10)	203-211
OTHER BUSINESS AND FUTURE WORK (AGENDA ITEM 11)	222-230
PAPER FROM THE JOINT FAO/WHO JMPR SECRETARIAT ON SEVERAL ISSUES RELATED TO THE WORKING RELATIONSSHIP BETWEEN JMPR AND CCPR	
(AGENDA ITEM 11)	212-227
Work Sharing	213-216
Criteria for Prioritization	
Concerns Regarding MRLs	218-222
Availability of JMPR Reports	223-224
Consideration of Alternative GAPs	225-227
UPDATE OF THE EC LEGISLATION	228-230
DATE AND PLACE OF THE NEXT SESSION	

LIST OF APPENDICES

Pages

APPENDIX I	LIST OF PARTICIPANTS	26
APPENDIX II	DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 8)	47
Appendix III	PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 5/8)	48
APPENDIX IV	PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION AT STEP 5)	53
APPENDIX V	CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES RECOMMENDED FOR REVOCATION	54
APPENDIX VI	PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES (RETAINED AT STEPS 7 AND 7 RESPECTIVELY)	57
APPENDIX VII	DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS RETUREND TO STEP 6	59
APPENDIX VIII	PRIORITY LIST OF CHEMICALS FOR EVALUATION AND RE-EVALUATION BY JMPR	61
APPENDIX IX	DISCONTINUATION OF WORK ON THE DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDIUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES	67

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

(Used in this Report)

CAC	Codex Alimentarius Commission
CCFA	Codex Committee on Food Additives
CCGP	Codex Committee on General Principles
CCMAS	Codex Committee on Methods of Analysis and Sampling
CCNFSDU	Codex Committee on Nutrition and Foods for Special Dietary Uses
CCPR	Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues
CCRVDF	Codex Committee on Residues of Veterinary Drugs in Foods
CLI	CropLife International
EFSA	European Food Safety Authority
EC	European Community
FAO	Food and Agricultural Organization of the United Nations
GEMS/Food	Global Environment Monitoring System - Food Contamination Monitoring and Assessment Programme
JECFA	Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives
JMPR	Joint FAO/WHO Meetings on Pesticide Residues
OECD	Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
SPS Agreement	Agreement on the Application of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures
WHO	World Health Organization
WTO	World Trade Organization
ARfD	Acute Reference Dose
ADI	Acceptable Daily Intake
CXL	Codex Maximum Residue Limit for Pesticide
DIE	Daily Intake Estimate
GAP	Good Agricultural Practice in the Use of Pesticides
EMRL	Extraneous Maximum Residue Limit
HR	Highest residue in edible portion of a commodity found in trials used to estimate a maximum residue level in the commodity
HR IESTI	

INTRODUCTION

1. The Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues (CCPR) held its 39th Session in Beijing, China, from 7 to 12 May 2007 at the kind invitation of the Government of China. Professor Chen Zongmao, Academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering chaired the Session, assisted by Dr H. J. Jeuring of the Food and Consumer Product Safety Authority of The Netherlands as Co-chairperson. The Session was attended by 199 delegates representing 52 Member Countries, 1 Member organization and 7 International Organizations. The list of participants is attached as Appendix I to this Report.

OPENING OF THE SESSION

2. Dr Henk Bekedam, the WHO Representative in China, welcomed delegates on behalf of FAO and WHO. He stated that food safety had become a public health priority in many countries, including China. He highlighted the growing concerns of farmers and consumers over the pesticide residues and also stressed that safe use of pesticides should be promoted to prevent the risk posed by direct exposure to pesticides.

3. Mr Fan Xiaojian, Vice Minister of Agriculture, China, welcomed participants and highlighted the growing importance of China as a significant exporter and importer of food products. Mr Fan emphasized the need to protect consumers' health and to ensure fair practices in trade and also stressed the commitment of China to fulfil the responsibilities as the host country of this Committee.

Division of Competence

4. The Committee noted the division of competence between the European Community (EC) and its Member States, according to paragraph 5, Rule II of the Procedure of the Codex Alimentarius Commission, as presented in CRD 2.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA (AGENDA ITEM 1)¹

- 5. The Committee noted some proposals to rearrange the Provisional Agenda and agreed:
- to discuss the proposal by the United States on MRLs in no residue situations as contained in CRD 16 under Agenda Item 9; and
- to consider the working document CX/PR 07/39/11 prepared by the JMPR Secretariat in conjunction with the proposed process for examination of alternative GAP under Agenda Item 4a.

6. The Committee also agreed to consider the information from the Delegation of the EC about the development of their new legislation relevant to the work of the Committee under Other Business and Future Work.

7. With these amendments, the Provisional Agenda, as contained in CX/PR 07/38/1, was adopted as the Agenda for the Session.

8. The Delegation of India drew the attention of the Committee to the late availability of some working documents, which made it difficult for countries to consult with all the stakeholders and formulate positions for the meeting.

APPOINTMENT OF RAPPORTEURS (AGENDA ITEM 2)

9. Dr D. Lunn (New Zealand) and Dr Y. Yamada (Japan) were appointed as rapporteurs.

MATTERS REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE BY THE CODEX ALIMENTARIUS COMMISSION AND/OR OTHER CODEX COMMITTEES (AGENDA ITEM 3)²

10. The Committee noted that a number of matters referred from the 29th Session of the Codex Alimentarius Commission (CAC), 57th Session of the Executive Committee and other Codex Committees, presented by the Secretariat, containing the decisions of the above bodies, were for information purposes or would be discussed in more detail by the current session of the CCPR under the relevant Agenda Items.

¹ CX/PR 07/39/1; CRD 10 (comments of India).

² CX PR 07/39/2; CX/PR 07/39/2-Add.2 (matters from the 24th Session of the Codex Committee on General Principles); CRD 11 (comments from India).

11. The Secretariat drew the attention of the Committee to the recommendation of the 24th Session of the Codex Committee on General Principles that the MRLs Periodic Review Procedure should be reviewed in the light of more recent documents related to the MRL setting process and consider whether this procedure should be published in the Procedural Manual. The Committee noted that this matter should be discussed in more detail on the basis of a paper to be prepared for consideration at the next session of the Committee.

Criteria for Prioritization of Process of Compounds for Evaluation by JMPR

12. The Delegation of India drew the attention of the Committee to the fact that the 29th session of the Commission, while adopting the Draft Revised Criteria for Prioritization of Process of Compounds for Evaluation by JMPR, agreed to draw the attention of the CCPR to the question of giving priority to pesticides and commodities of interest to developing countries and reiterated their request to amend the Revised Criteria by including this provision in the text. The Committee noted that commodities could be evaluated by JMPR for pesticide residues only when relevant data were available. The Committee also noted that the Criteria for the Establishment for Work Priorities already included a general requirement that the needs of developing countries should be taken into account, and that this applied to all Codex Committees including the CCPR and therefore did not agree with the proposal of India. The Committee agreed that the existing criteria were sufficient to address the special needs of developing countries.

13. The Committee recalled that at its 37th Session it had identified acute intake concerns for certain pesticides and had requested the JMPR to consider a procedure for recommending a maximum residue level that relates to the highest residues from a national GAP where there are sufficient supervised trials data and where the residues do not result in an IESTI (international estimate of short-term dietary intake) that exceeds the acute reference dose."

14. JMPR agreed that this would be a suitable procedure because Codex MRLs are standards primarily for food in trade and not for the enforcement of a national GAP. However, JMPR identified two approaches for the implementation of the new procedure, the retrospective approach to consider an alternative GAP when requested to do so by CCPR and the prospective approach to consider an alternative GAP when an IESTI is exceeded without waiting for request from CCPR. JMPR sought advice from the Committee on the best way to proceed.

15. The Committee agreed that both approaches should be applied, the retrospective approach being mainly applicable for old compounds, used where needed, and the prospective approach which would become the routine approach. Several members supported the use of prospective approach.

REPORT ON ITEMS OF GENERAL CONSIDERATION BY THE 2006 JOINT FAO/WHO MEETINGS ON PESTICIDE RESIDUES (AGENDA ITEM 4)³

2.1 COMPLETENESS OF DATA SUBMISSIONS

16. The JMPR Secretariat emphasized that CCPR relied upon the scientific advice provided by the JMPR when recommending international food standards for pesticide residues. To ensure maximum transparency and acceptability, and to provide state-of-the-knowledge evaluations, it is essential that JMPR can review all the available data, and it is solely for JMPR to decide which data are relevant and which are not.

2.2 RESPONSE TO CCPR REGARDING CONCERNS RAISED ABOUT THE TOXICOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF DELTAMETHRIN AND INDOXACARB

17. As a consequence of the new 'concerns form' procedures implemented by the CCPR in 2006, the 2006 JMPR considered the concerns raised by Codex Members on the toxicological assessments of deltamethrin and of indoxacarb. The JMPR Secretariat advised that the full text of these considerations had been published in the electronic summary report and in the full report of the meeting, and that this approach would be used to report all future considerations.

18. With respect to deltamethrin, the JMPR reconsidered in detail the critical studies as well as new information and confirmed that the ARfD of 0.05 mg/kg bw established by the 2000 JMPR was still appropriate.

³ Pesticide Residues in Food 2006, Joint FAO/WHO Meeting on Pesticide Residues, Report 2006, FAO Plant Production and Protection paper 187, Rome, 2006; CRD 3 (comments from the EC).

19. The Delegation of the EC indicated that while it appreciated the response from JMPR, the reconsiderations were not reported in sufficient detail and that the EC still upheld their original concern.

20. Regarding indoxacarb, the 2006 JMPR reconsidered the critical studies and the critical toxic effects and confirmed that the ADI for indoxacarb of 0-0.01 mg/kg bw established by the 2005 JMPR was still appropriate. The Delegation of the EC noted that based on the detailed information provided in the JMPR report their concern could be reconsidered.

2.3 APPLICATION OF ALTERNATIVE GOOD AGRICULTURAL PRACTICES (GAP)

21. Following the decision of the Committee at its 38th Session, JMPR applied for the first time the retrospective and prospective approach for compounds for which acute intake concerns existed. It had been decided that when the ARfD is exceeded for a particular GAP and pesticide/commodity combination, JMPR should consider alternative country GAPs with adequate supporting field trials in order to identify a GAP which could alleviate the acute intake concerns. The retrospective approach was used for three compounds and the prospective approach for one compound.

22. The Committee was informed that in all of the three retrospective evaluations the data were not adequate to propose lower MRLs that would resolve that acute intake concerns and that JMPR had suggested that the likelihood of finding an acceptable alternative GAP should be considered before a request for evaluation is made and the data are submitted to JMPR (see also Agenda Item 4 (a)).

2.4 SHORT-TERM DIETARY INTAKE ASSESSMENT: UNCERTAINTIES IN THE INTERNATIONAL ESTIMATED SHORT-TERM INTAKE (IESTI) CALCULATION AND ITS INTERPRETATION

23. The Committee received further clarification on the deterministic method used by JMPR for the calculation of the IESTI including detailed information on the variables used in the equations for the IESTI calculations and the uncertainty and variability associated with these variables.

24. With the objective to improve the estimation of the short term dietary intake of pesticides and its interpretation, JMPR recommended that an international consultation could be held to address *inter alia*:

- Uncertainty and variability of the parameters used in the estimation;
- Ways to improve the consumption, unit weight and body weight data provided to the JMPR;
- Identification of additional subgroups of the population for which the assessment should be conducted, e.g. toddlers;
- The adequacy of the IESTI equations when residues from monitoring/enforcement data are used or the need of a specific methodology for this application;
- How to improve communication between JMPR and the risk managers and the public on the output of the risk assessment.

25. The JMPR Secretariat advised that both FAO and WHO are prepared to organize such a consultation but that this would require extra-budgetary resources. The Delegation of the EC highly welcomed the recommendation to address these issues.

2.5 UPDATE OF THE AUTOMATED SPREADSHEET APPLICATIONS FOR THE CALCULATION OF DIETARY INTAKE: INTRODUCTION OF THE 13 GEMS/FOOD CONSUMPTION CLUSTER DIETS.

26. The Committee was informed that the automated spread-sheet application, adopted by the 2003 JMPR to harmonize and facilitate the calculation of dietary intake, was updated to include the 13 new WHO/GEMS/Food consumption cluster diets. The JMPR Secretariat, also on behalf of GEMS/Food, thanked the Dutch National Institute for Public Health and the Environment and the French Food Safety Authority for their assistance in this important work. The Committee was informed that there were difficulties in this process because the Codex Classification for Food and Feed does not always match FAO Food Balance Sheet data, on which the cluster diets were based and that harmonization of the two data sets would facilitate updating the cluster diets in the future. The Committee was also informed that implementation of the 13 cluster diets had resulted in increased consumption of certain foods in some diets and that there was an overall increase in food consumption. The JMPR Secretariat advised that the average body weights will have

to be updated and encouraged Members to submit available data to GEMS/Food. The Committee was informed that the Consumption Cluster diets were available on the WHO GEMS/Food website⁴ and that the spread sheet application for intake assessments would be available there shortly.

27. The Delegation of Australia welcomed the introduction of the Cluster Diets and emphasized the importance of using up-dated consumption figures in a consistent manner, and that this would be assisted if more detailed information on the spread-sheet application, were available including annotation of figures and worked examples. The Delegation of Thailand informed the Committee that the large portion consumption data have been submitted to GEMS/Food for inclusion into the data base for short-term dietary intake assessment. The Observer of CropLife International pointed out that the accuracy of the consumption data was critical for the assessment of exposure and that the data should be validated in order to avoid inconsistencies.

2.6 A TIERED TOXICITY-TESTING STRATEGY FOR PESTICIDES

28. The Committee was informed that JMPR had been advised of on-going activities relating to data requirements for evaluating the safety of pesticides through a project involving participants from academia, industry and regulatory/government agencies from various countries and welcomed such initiatives to build international consensus for a new hypothesis-driven toxicology testing paradigm.

2.7 GUIDANCE ON THE INTERPRETATION OF HEPATOCELLULAR HYPERTROPHY

29. The Committee was informed that JMPR at its 2006 meeting established guidance on the interpretation of hepatocellular hypertrophy, an endpoint commonly observed in toxicological studies, as adaptive or adverse effect, by applying a systematic weight-of-evidence approach via consideration of a series of questions. The Committee was informed that JMPR recommended development of further guidance on modest toxicological responses, such as organ or body weight changes and that this could be addressed through the WHO International Program on Chemical Safety's (IPCS) project on the harmonization of chemical risk assessment methods. The Committee was also informed that the guidance paper on liver hypertrophy had been presented to the OECD Working Group on Pesticides which would await outcome of IPCS work.

2.8 UPDATING THE PRINCIPLES AND METHODS OF RISK ASSESSMENT: MRLs FOR PESTICIDES AND VETERINARY DRUGS

30. The Committee was informed about the JMPR responses to the relevant recommendations from the report of the FAO/WHO workshop held in November 2005^5 with the goal to harmonize, to the extent possible, MRL derivation procedures for pesticide residues and veterinary drug residues.

31. With respect to residues in milk, the Committee was informed that JECFA had agreed to use the same approach as JMPR, to derive two MRLs, one for whole milk and one for milk fat, provided that sufficient data were available.

32. JMPR has recommended the formation of a task group from JMPR and JECFA to address harmonization issues relating to the assessment of dual-use compounds, commodity and tissue definitions and extrapolation between species.

33. The Committee agreed with the JMPR request that future calls for data would include requests for GAP information on specialty and minor crops.

34. Regarding the recommendation to expand the principle of setting group MRLs, the Committee agreed to the revised procedure recommended by JMPR for setting group MRLs, i.e.:

After dietary intake assessment, commodity group MRLs may be proposed on the following minimum conditions:

(1) The pesticide is registered or authorized for use on the crop group; and

(2) Relevant and adequate residue data are available for at least one major commodity of the group. (However, all relevant data for the commodities of the group should be taken into account.)

⁴ <u>http://www.who.int/foodsafety/chem/gems/en/index1.html</u>

⁵ FAO/WHO. 2006. Updating the Principles and Methods of Risk Assessment: MRLs for Pesticides and Veterinary Drugs. <u>http://www.fao.org/ag/AGP/AGPP/Pesticid/JMPR/DOWNLOAD/bilthoven_2005.pdf</u>

If the recommended group MRL is subsequently found to be inadequate for some commodities and their registered uses, there would be no impediment to submission of further data to amend the group MRL or to propose specific commodity MRLs.

In line with the alternative GAP proposal, if the IESTI calculations suggested that short-term intake would exceed the ARfD of the compound for one or more commodities in the group, the JMPR would examine and recommend alternative proposals including alternative GAP and single commodity MRLs.

2.9 **RESIDUES IN ROTATIONAL CROPS**

35. The Committee was informed that JMPR regularly reviews residues in follow-up or rotational crops and when reviewing the data for boscalid, the 2006 JMPR noted the occasional occurrence of high residues in rotational crops and since such residue levels may cause trade disruptions and may underestimate the dietary intake. JMPR had requested guidance on how this issue should be addressed. The Committee agreed that a CL be issued in order to obtain information from member countries on how residues in follow-up crops, including the compound boscalid, are regulated at the national level, and that this information should be provided to JMPR for their consideration.

2.10 USE OF STATISTICAL METHODS IN THE EVALUATION OF SUPERVISED FIELD TRIAL DATA FOR THE ESTIMATION OF MAXIMUM RESIDUE LEVELS

36. The Committee noted that JMPR had used and compared two statistical methods for estimating MRLs using field trials data and that both statistical methods would be used in the future to assist JMPR evaluators in the estimation of MRLs. The Committee was informed that both statistical methods would be included in the revision of the "FAO Manual for the Submission and Evaluation of Pesticide Residue Data for the Estimation of MRLs in Food and Feed.

2.11 OECD GUIDANCE AND GUIDELINES FOR RESIDUE CHEMISTRY

37. JMPR welcomed the development and publication of a series of the OECD residue chemistry guidelines and guidance documents and advised that the documents would be used in the revised version of the FAO Manual with the aims of maximum harmonization and future work-sharing.

2.12 OECD TEMPLATES FOR RESIDUE SUPERVISED TRIALS DATA

38. The Committee was informed that JMPR had made concrete proposals for the revision of the draft OECD templates for reporting supervised residue field trials to improve their suitability for use by national authorities and JMPR.

2.13 OECD LIVESTOCK FEED TABLES AND POSSIBLE IMPLICATIONS FOR THE WORK OF JMPR

39. The Committee was advised that the OECD livestock feed tables had been evaluated by JMPR and that they would be used by future JMPR when estimating dietary burdens in livestock and would be included in the next revision of the FAO manual.

2.14 PILOT PROJECT ON WORK-SHARING FOR QUINOXYFEN

40. JMPR informed the Committee that quinoxyfen was the last compound involved in the pilot project on work-shoring and that for this compound, with low toxicity, simple metabolism, clear analytical methods and a harmonized residue definition the time saved in the toxicological assessment was about 50-70% and in the residue evaluation 15-20%. The Committee noted that there was no need to conduct future pilot studies and that work sharing was now routine for JMPR. The conclusions and recommendations from the JMPR are also reflected in CX/PR 07/39/11-Rev.1 (see Agenda Item 11).

PROPOSED PROCESS FOR EXAMINATION OF ALTERNATIVE GAP WHEN ACUTE INTAKE CONCERNS ARE IDENTIFIED BY JMPR (AGENDA ITEM 4a) 6

41. The Delegation of the United States introduced the document and recalled earlier discussions concerning the use of alternative GAPs. It had been proposed that when the ARfD is exceeded for a particular GAP and chemical/commodity combination, JMPR should consider alternative GAPs with adequate supporting field trials in order to identify the GAP resulting in the highest residue value for which

⁶ CX/PR 07/39/2-Add.1; CRD 3 (comments from the EC).

the IESTI is below the ARfD. The Delegation noted that this approach had been agreed by the Committee at its last session and used by JMPR in 2006. The Delegation explained that the purpose of this document was to develop clear instructions on how to implement the new alternative GAP procedure. The Delegation therefore proposed the following process:

Retrospective Analysis (Initiated at CCPR Meetings)

- 1) The CCPR identifies pesticide/commodity combinations returned 3 times to Step 6 and refers them to the JMPR for alternative GAP analysis.
- 2) A CL is issued soon after CCPR identifying the pesticides for which alternative GAP information is needed.
 - > The letter reminds submitters of the lessons learned
 - The submitter should be encouraged to consider the situation that has resulted in the dietary intake concern and determine, if possible, whether the available new data will make a difference before supplying the data. In cases where it cannot be determined if the new data will result in a new MRL recommendation, then the data should be submitted.
 - Both residue data and the corresponding labels must be submitted for the information to be useful. Generally, a label without field trial data or field trial data without a label will not suffice.
- 3) JMPR identifies the relevant compounds for the upcoming year in its data-call-in notice.
 - > The Data-call again reminds the data submitters of the points noted in #2
- 4) Member governments, manufacturers, and interested parties submit information on the availability of relevant data for identified pesticides (#2) and actual data packages (#3) to the JMPR Secretaries (usually the FAO Secretary).
- 5) JMPR evaluates the alternative GAP information and makes recommendations.
- 6) CCPR reviews the JMPR recommendations and proceeds to withdraw MRLs where no resolution of the dietary intake concern has been possible.

Prospective Analysis (Routinely Conducted by JMPR During Evaluation)

1) During each residue evaluation where the IESTI is exceeded, JMPR should draw attention to available information on alternative GAPs and associated residue trials where the IESTI would not appear to be exceeded and recommend an MRL associated with this alternative GAP.

2) If acceptable alternative GAP is not available the JMPR should clearly state the particular situation that exists (as described in lessons learned above). Although the JMPR did not make this recommendation, we propose adding the following to the process. The JMPR should also indicate an approximate "acceptable" Highest Residue (HR) as one of the conclusions of their analysis, i.e., a value that would yield an acceptable IESTI calculation. This information should be in the JMPR Report. This would provide a benchmark for interested parties and would help to alleviate the submission of non-relevant data to JMPR.

3) CCPR reviews the JMPR recommendations and decides on MRLs recommended on the basis of alternative GAP.

4) Countries, manufacturers, and interested parties are invited to give attention to the situations where there are exceedances of the acute RfD and alternative GAP were not available. This necessitates considering the particular situation as outlined in the JMPR report.

5) Having analyzed the situation governments, manufacturers, and other interested parties should be able to supply both labels and field trial data that support an alternative GAP within the 3 year period that will have elapsed until the pesticide/commodity combination is returned 3 times to Step 6 and is referred to the JMPR for alternative GAP analysis.

42. Some delegations indicated that they supported the prospective approach but that the retrospective approach might be more difficult to apply in practice in light of the JMPR workload and the need for updated GAP information and sufficient residue data. (See also Agenda Item 11).

43. The Committee noted that the proposed procedure included a number of activities involving JMPR, and agreed that the document would be forwarded to the 2007 JMPR for consideration and advice, and that the Committee would consider the alternative GAP procedure described above at its next session in the light of the advice received from JMPR.

DRAFT AND PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES IN FOOD AND FEEDS AT STEP 7 AND 4 (AGENDA ITEM 5)^7

GENERAL REMARKS

44. In response to a question from the EC, the JMPR Secretary advised that, in case of a change of ADI or ARfD, JMPR would, if possible, identify any CXLs which give rise to intake concerns and include this information in the JMPR Report for consideration at the following year's session of CCPR. The Committee agreed that this approach would allow risk management decisions to be taken as soon as possible.

45. The Committee noted that due to technical reason CXLs resulting from the 29th session of the CAC were not available at the website. The Codex Secretariat responded that it would be updated before 2008.

CAPTAN (007)

46. The Observer from CropLife International informed the Committee that metabolism data could be submitted to the 2007 JMPR.

47. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for cherries; dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas); grapes; melons, except watermelon; peach; plums (including prunes); pome fruits; strawberry and tomato to Step 6, awaiting outcome of the 2007 JMPR evaluation.

CARBARYL (008)

48. The JMPR Secretariat noted that data were received from the United States, Thailand and the Netherlands for evaluation by the 2007 JMPR.

49. The Delegation of Japan indicated that the life span of the temporary MRLs had already expired and that the Committee should take decisions on them. It was decided that the background of the temporary status of these CXLs should be provided and they should be considered at the next session.

50. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for cherries; citrus fruits; citrus juice; citrus pulp, dry; dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas); grape juice; grape pomace, dry; grapes and stone fruits to Step 6, awaiting the outcome of the 2007 JMPR evaluation.

CHLORPYRIFOS (017)

51. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRL for cranberry to Step 5/8 as there was no intake concern identified by JMPR.

DIAZINON (022)

52. The Delegation of the EC informed the Committee that it has an ADI of 0.0002 mg/kg, which is lower than the one recommended by JMPR at 0.005mg/kg and asked why the results from the dog studies had not been considered by JMPR for the ADI setting. The JMPR Secretariat clarified that the dog studies were taken into account as part of an overall toxicological evaluation, and the ADI was based on the highest NOAEL from the combined studies.

53. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRL for cranberry to Step 5/8 as no intake concern was identified by JMPR, noting the reservation of the EC on the JMPR assessment of the toxicological database.

DICOFOL(026)

54. The Committee decided to retain the existing CXL for tea, green, black at the request of the Delegation of India, waiting the submission of new data by India for evaluation by JMPR.

55. The Committee noted that the JMPR has scheduled the toxicology evaluation for dicofol for 2010 and residue evaluation for 2011.

⁷ CL 2007/2-PR; CX/PR 07/39/3; CX/PR 07/39/3-Add.1; CRD 4, 15, 17, 18, 19.

DIMETHOATE (027)

56. The Observer from CropLife International informed the Committee that data on lettuce would be submitted to the JMPR this year, data for peppers would be available in 2008 and for cabbage data would not be available until 2011. The JMPR Secretariat advised that dimethoate was on the 2008 JMPR agenda. The Delegation of Australia proposed that CCPR request JMPR to conduct intake calculations taking into account a number of MRL revocations in the past 3 years. JMPR Secretariat informed the Committee that exposure assessment could only be conducted when sufficient data are available to JMPR.

57. The Committee decided to retain draft MRLs for lettuce, head and peppers, sweet at Step 7, awaiting 2008 JMPR evaluation of alternative GAP. In view of the intake concern, the Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRL for cabbage, head and to recommend revocation of the CXL for the same commodity at the same level.

ENDOSULFAN (032)

58. Some delegations were in favour of revocation of CXLs, recommended by 2006 JMPR for withdrawal. However, the delegations of China and India proposed to retain the CXL for tea for four years under the Periodic Review Program. The Delegation of the EC expressed reservation on the advancement of MRLs for cucumber and melons, except watermelons as estimated short-term intake exceeded the ARfD in the exposure assessment conducted in the UK.

59. The Committee decided to advance draft MRLs for broccoli; celery; cherries and tomato for adoption at Step 5, and to advance draft MRLs for avocado; cacao beans; coffee beans; cotton seed; cucumber; custard apple; eggplant; eggs; hazelnuts; kidney of cattle, goats, pigs & sheep; litchi; liver of cattle, goats, pigs & sheep; macadamia nuts; mango; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); melons, except watermelons; milk fats; milks; papaya; persimmon; potato; poultry meat; poultry, edible offal of; soy bean (dry); soya bean oil, crude; squash and sweet potato for adoption at Step 5/8 as there were no acute intake concerns with these MRLs, and the subsequent revocation of the associated CXLs. The Committee also decided to recommend revocation of the existing CXLs for broad bean (green pods and immature seeds); cabbage, savoy; cabbage, head; carrot; cauliflower; common bean (pods and/or immature seeds); cotton seed oil, crude; garden pea (young pods); grapes; kale; lettuce, head; lettuce, leaf; maize; onion, bulb; oranges, sweet, sour; peach; pineapple; plums (including prunes); pome fruits; rape seed; rice; spinach; sugar beet; sunflower seed and wheat. The CXL for tea (green, black) was retained for 4 years under the Periodic Review Procedure.

FENITROTHION (037)

60. The Committee noted that the Delegation of Australia advised the Committee that manufacturer would provide data for the residue evaluation by the 2007 JMPR.

61. The Committee noted that the manufacturer had submitted the toxicology data to JMPR.

62. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran, unprocessed to Step 6, awaiting the outcome of 2007 JMPR evaluation.

FENTIN (040)

63. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of all CXLs since the compound was no longer supported.

MALATHION (049)

64. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for alfafa fodder; clover hay or fodder; hay or fodder (dry) of grasses; maize fodder (dry); wheat straw and fodder, dry to Step 6, awaiting the submission of data on animal transfer studies for evaluation by JMPR. The Committee agreed to consider the withdrawal of these draft MRLs at the next session if no animal transfer data were available.

PARATHION-METHYL (059)

65. The Committee noted that all the draft MRLs for animal feed commodities had been returned twice to Step 6 due to the lack of animal transfer studies and decided to recommend the withdrawal of all the draft MRLs for animal feed and associated commodities.

THIABENDAZOLE (065)

66. The Committee noted that the 2006 JMPR had proposed an MRL of 5 mg/kg for citrus fruits, several delegations suggested based on the reported HRs of 5.2 mg/kg and statistical analysis, a more appropriate MRL would be 7.0 mg/kg.

67. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRLs for citrus fruits of 5 mg/kg for adoption at Step 5 and to request JMPR to reconsider the statistical calculation used to derive the MRL for citrus at its next meeting.

CYHEXATIN (067)

68. The committee was informed that the Codex secretariat would correct the database entries for cyhexatin to make them identical to those for azocyclotin (129), as agreed at the last session of the Committee.

CARBENDAZIM (072)

69. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRLs for cherries; grapes; lettuce, head; mango; oranges, sweet, sour at Step 7, awaiting the response from the JMPR to the concern form submitted by the Delegation of EC with respect to the ARfD established by JMPR. Some delegations pointed that the concerns of the EC were related to a policy in relation to safety and other factors and not to a specific evaluation and that the Committee should take a decision on the MRL at its next session.

DISULFOTON (074)

70. The Committee noted that the draft MRLs had been returned three times to Step 6 due to intake concerns.

71. As the alternative GAPs did not lead to lower MRLs in the 2006 JMPR, the Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRLs for broccoli; cabbages, head; cauliflower; lettuce, head; lettuce, leaf.

FENAMIPHOS (085)

72. The Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRLs for peppers; watermelon; tomato, as JMPR had concluded there were inadequate data to propose lower MRLs (based on alternative GAP) that would resolve the acute intake concerns. The Committee also decided to revoke the existing CXL for tomato (0.2 mg/kg).

73. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRL for melons, except watermelon for adoption at Step 5/8.

PIRIMIPHOS-METHYL (086)

74. The Committee noted the EC concern that JMPR had established higher ADI and ARfD values than those established by the EC.

CHLORPYRIFOS-METHYL (090)

75. The Committee decided to maintain the proposed draft MRLs for barley, oats and rice at Step 7 due to intake concerns awaiting the outcome of the periodic re-evaluation by the 2009 JMPR.

METHOMYL (094)

76. The Committee decided to advance the MRLs for pear for adoption at Step 8 as there was no intake concern, and recommend the revocation of the existing CXL for pome fruits and to withdraw the draft MRL for apple as the use was no longer supported.

77. The Committee decided to maintain the proposed draft MRLs for Brassica vegetables, celery, fruiting vegetables, cucurbits, grapes and leafy vegetables at Step 7 awaiting the outcome of the 2008 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP).

ACEPHATE (095)

78. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRLs for flowerhead brassicas and mandarins at Step 7 awaiting the outcome of the 2009 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP).

79. The Committee decided to return for the second time the MRLs for nectarine; peach; peppers; and

pome fruits to Step 6 because of intake concerns and to advance the proposed draft MRL for cranberry for adoption at Step 5/8.

CARBOFURAN (096)

80. The Committee decided to maintain the MRLs for cantaloupe, cucumber, mandarin, oranges, sweet, sour; potato, squash, and sweet corn to Step 7 awaiting the evaluation by 2008 JMPR.

81. The Delegation of USA informed the Committee that they would re-submit new data on toxicology to JMPR for reviewing the ARfD.

METHAMIDOPHOS (100)

82. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRLs for flowerhead brassicas and mandarins at Step 7 awaiting the outcome of the 2009 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP) for acephate (095).

83. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for nectarine; peach; peppers and pome fruits to Step 6 because of intake concern arising from the use of acephate (095).

84. The Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRL for cabbages head and tomato because of intake concern and because no data will become available to support alternative GAPs for these commodities.

85. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of CXLs for cabbages head and cucumber as recommended by the 2004 JMPR.

PIRIMICARB (101)

86. The Committee decided to advance the MRLs for artichoke globe; asparagus; berries and other small fruits; brassica vegetables; cereal grains (excluding rice); citrus fruits; edible offal, mammalian; eggs; fruiting vegetables other than cucurbits (excluding edible fungi and sweetcorn); fruiting vegetable, cucurbits (except melons and watermelons); garlic; kale; legume vegetables (except soya beans); lettuce, head, lettuce, leaf; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); melons except watermelons; milks; onion bulb; pea hay or pea fodder; pome fruits, poultry meat, poultry, edible offal of; pulses (except soya bean (dry); rape seed; root and tuber vegetable; stone fruits; straw and fodder (dry) of cereal grains (except rice straw and fodder, dry); sunflower seed and sweet corn for adoption at Step 5/8 as there were no intake concerns.

87. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of all CXLs as recommended by the 2006 JMPR.

88. The Committee noted the reservation expressed by the EC for stone fruits because of intake concern.

PHOSMET (103)

89. The Committee decided to return the MRLs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruits, nectarine and pome fruits to Step 6 due to intake concerns waiting the evaluation by JMPR 2007 (alternative GAP).

DITHIOCARBAMATES (105)

90. The Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRL for peppers, sweet, due to acute dietary intake concerns and as the use of propineb, which was the basis of this MRL, was no longer supported by the manufacturer.

PHORATE (112)

91. The Committee was informed that the manufacturers would provide additional data for processed potato in 2008 for evaluation by the 2009 JMPR. The Delegation of Chile expressed its concern over the high toxicity of the compound due to its extremely low ADI and ARfD. The Committee noted that the EC would submit a "concern form" regarding the acute intake concern associated with the MRL for potato, which would be taken into account by the 2009 JMPR.

92. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRL for potato at Step 7, awaiting 2009 JMPR evaluation.

PROPARGITE (113)

93. The Committee decided to advance the draft MRLs for beans (dry); broad bean (dry); chick-pea

(dry); lupin (dry); potato and walnuts for adoption at Step 5/8.

94. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of the CXLs for apricot; nectarine; peach and plums (including prunes), which had been replaced by the MRL for stone fruits, and the CXLs for pear and strawberry as recommended by the 2002 JMPR.

ALDICARB (117)

95. The JMPR Secretariat informed the Committee that the 2006 JMPR had concluded that there were inadequate data to propose lower MRLs (based on alternative GAPs) that would resolve the acute intake concerns for potato and banana.

96. The Committee decided to recommend withdrawal the draft MRLs for banana and potato and to revoke the existing CXL for potato.

CYPERMETHRINS (INCLUDING ALPHA- AND ZETA CYPERMETHRIN) (118)

97. The Delegation of the EC expressed the opinion that the chronic risk of the compound might be overestimated as the toxicological evaluation was based on the most toxic isomer, alpha-cypermethrin, while residues in crops, arising from its use were cypermethrin, which was less toxic and requested the JMPR to develop toxicity equivalence factors for the different isomers. The JMPR Secretariat indicated that it would require data for all isomers in order to develop these potency factors. The Committee noted that three manufacturers would submit residue data to JMPR for consideration by the 2008 JMPR.

OXAMYL (126)

98. The Delegation of Ireland informed the Committee that a "concern form" would be submitted to the JMPR with the differing assessment of toxicology data leading to a lower ARfD within the EC.

99. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRLs for citrus fruits; cucumber; melons, except watermelon and peppers at Step 7 awaiting the JMPR review (alternative GAP) in 2008. The Committee also decided to consider revocation of the CXLs for apple and tomato at the next session as no data seemed to be available for those commodities.

METALAXYL (138)

100. The Committee noted that this compound was no longer supported and agreed to consider revocation of all CXLs at its next session.

101. The Delegation of Australia indicated that at the 37th Session of CCPR it was decided to recommend revocation of CXLs after two years and that at that time the metalaxyl-M MRLs at Step 6 would be advanced for adoption at Step 8.

102. The Committee agreed to request information from Codex members and observers regarding support for metalaxyl-M before the CCPR 40.

PROCHLORAZ (142)

103. The Committee was informed that the manufacturer would provide alternative GAP information and corresponding trial data by February 2008 to be reviewed by the 2009 JMPR.

104. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRL for mushrooms at Step 7 due to acute intake concerns, awaiting 2009 JMPR evaluation.

CARBOSULFAN (145)

105. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRLs for mandarin; oranges, sweet, sour, and potato at Step 7 in line with the decisions on these commodities for carbofuran (096).

PROPAMOCARB (148)

106. The Committee decided to advance all the draft MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 with the subsequent deletion of the associated CXLs, noting the EC reservations on the MRLs for lettuce, head and lettuce cauliflower and spinach, leaf due to intake concern and the quality of the residue database (number of trials).

107. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of the CXLs for beetroot; Brussels sprouts; cabbages, head; celery; cucumber and strawberry as recommended by 2006 JMPR.

CYFLUTHRIN/BETA-CYFLUTHRIN (157)

108. The Committee noted the concerns expressed by the EC on the ADI and ARfD allocated by 2006 JMPR.

PROPICONAZOLE (160)

109. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRL for cranberry for adoption at Step 5/8 since there were no intake concerns.

OXYDEMETON-METHYL (166)

110. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for apple; cabbages, head; grapes; oranges, sweet, sour to Step 6 for the second time because of dietary intake concerns.

111. JMPR stressed its request for information to support for alternative GAP reviews for these commodities.

CYROMAZINE (169)

112. The EC expressed intake concerns for lettuce, head and potato.

FENPROPATHRIN (185)

113. The Committee noted the request of EC for the establishment of an ARfD for fenpropathrin in view of its toxicological properties. JMPR clarified that the compound was not yet scheduled for toxicological review by JMPR and to do so, information would be needed on the availability of data.

114. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRL for tea, green, black for adoption at Step 5/8.

FENPYROXIMATE (193)

115. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for apple and grapes to Step 6 because of acute intake concerns, awaiting the outcome of the 2007 JMPR review of the ARfD.

HALOXYFOP (194)

116. The Committee decided to retain the proposed draft MRLs for cattle kidney; cattle liver; cattle meat and cattle milk at Step 4 and all draft MRLs at Step 7, awaiting the outcome of the 2009 JMPR evaluation.

ESFENVALERATE (204)

117. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRLs for cotton seed; tomato; and wheat at Step 6, awaiting information on the phasing out of fenvalerate and the subsequent revocation of its CXLs.

118. The JMPR secretariat clarified that "phase-out" meant that the relevant compound was no longer supported in Codex; therefore the existing CXLs would be proposed for revocation.

119. The Committee decided to request information from Codex Members and Observers regarding the support for fenvalerate and also for metalaxyl.

IMIDACLOPRID (206)

120. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRL for cranberry for adoption at Step 5/8.

METHOXYFENOZIDE (209)

121. The Committee decided to advance the proposed draft MRL for cranberry for adoption at Step 5/8.

122. The Committee decided to withdraw the draft MRL for spinach as no information was available for JMPR to consider it for an alternative GAP.

PYRACLOSTROBIN (210)

123. The Committee decided to advance all the proposed draft MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 noting a reservation of the EC on the MRL on stone fruits in relation to intake concerns arising from the use of different variability factor from that of JMPR and to revoke the existing CXLs for cherries; peach; plums (including prunes), as recommended by 2006 JMPR.

FLUDIOXONIL (211)

124. The Committee decided to recommend revocation of the CXL for pear, as proposed by the 2006 JMPR. As the Committee decided at its last session to discontinue the work on interim MRLs, it also decided to recommend revocation of interim CXLs for soya bean (dry) and sunflower seed.

125. The Committee decided to advance the MRLs for apple pomace, dry; pome fruits for adoption at Step 5/8, as there was no intake concern.

METALAXYL-M (212)

126. The Committee decided to return all MRLs to Step 6 awaiting phasing out of metalaxyl (138) and to request information on support for metalaxyl CXLs. The Delegation of Thailand informed the Committee that metalaxyl was used in Thailand and that the phase-out of metalaxyl would cause trade problems.

INDOXACARB (216)

127. The Committee decided to return the MRL for cabbages, head to Step 6 due to short-term intake concerns and noted that indoxacarb has been scheduled for evaluation by 2007 JMPR (alternative GAPs).

128. The Committee decided to advance the MRLs for lettuce, leaf; milk fats; milks for adoption at Step 8, noting reservations of EC and Canada with respect to the JMPR toxicological evaluation. (See Agenda Item 4).

BIFENAZATE (219)

129. The Committee decided to advance the MRLs for almond hulls; cotton seed; dried grapes (=current raisins and sultanas); edible offal (mammalian); eggs; fruiting vegetables cucurbits; grapes; hops, dry; milk fats; milks; mint top; peppers, chili; peppers, sweet; pome fruits; poultry meat; poultry, edible offal of; stone fruits; strawberry; tomato; tree nuts for adoption at Step 5/8, and to advance the MRL for meat (from mammals other than marine mammals) for adoption at Step 5 and ask JMPR to address the USA concern relating to the animal dietary burden. The Committee noted that this compound is included for evaluation by 2007 JMPR.

130. The Committee also decided to recommend revocation of all the existing interim CXLs.

BOSCALID (221)

131. The Committee noted that the persistence of boscalid in soil might lead to residues in rotational crops and root and tuber crops.

132. The Committee decided to advance all the MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8, as these were for perennial crops.

QUINOXYFEN (222)

133. The Committee decided to advance the MRL for meat (from mammals other than marine mammals) at Step 5 only due to concerns of Australia that the use of the dairy cattle animal burden instead of the beef cattle animal burden would lead to higher MRL for meat, and to advance all other MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8. The Committee noted that Australia would submit the concern form for meat.

134. The Committee also noted that the JMPR would re-evaluate the animal dietary burden for quinoxyfen at its 2007 meeting.

THIACLOPRID (223)

135. The Committee decided to advance all the MRLs for adoption at Step 5/8 as no intake concern had been identified by JMPR.

136. The Committee noted a reservation of the EC on the advancement of the MRL for pome fruits due to intake concern.

RECOMMENDED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES IN/ON DRIED CHILI PEPPERS AND SPICES⁸

DRIED CHILI PEPPERS

DIMETHOATE (027)

137. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRL for dried chili peppers at Step 7, pending the 2008 JMPR evaluation of data on peppers (alternative GAP).

METHAMIDOPHOS (100)

138. The Committee decided to return the draft MRL for dried chili peppers to Step 6, in line with the decision taken for the MRL for peppers.

OXAMYL (126)

139. The Committee decided to retain the draft MRL for dried chili peppers at Step 7 awaiting the 2008 JMPR evaluation (alternative GAP for peppers).

SPICES

MEVINPHOS (053)

140. The Committee decided to return the draft MRLs for seeds; fruits or berries and roots or rhizomes to Step 6 and to request Codex Members to provide information on the availability of monitoring data on these crops for evaluation by JMPR. If no monitoring data were available the Committee would consider withdrawal of these draft MRLs.

141. The Chairperson stressed that the deadline for the submission of the concern form together with necessary data is the 15 June 2007.

PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE CODEX CLASSIFICATION OF FOODS AND ANIMAL FEEDS (AGENDA ITEM 6) 9

142. The Committee recalled that the revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds (CAC/MISC) had been discussed at several sessions of the Committee and that the last session of the Committee had agreed to start an extended revision of the document, which was subsequently approved by the 29th Session of the Commission. The Committee further recalled that it had agreed to establish an electronic working group led by the Netherlands and the United States to revise the proposal for amending the classification in line with the content of the project document.

143. The Delegation of the Netherlands, speaking as a co-chair of the Electronic Working Group, introduced the document CX/PR 07/39/6, which outlined the proposed work plan and included several recommendations for the revision of the two crop groups, "Bulb Vegetables" and "Fruiting Vegetables, other than Cucurbits". The Committee thanked the Electronic Working Group for their considerable work.

144. The Committee noted that due to late arrival of the document, there was not enough time for countries to consider the two crop group proposals in advance and agreed not to discuss them at the current session.

145. Several delegations stated that, while not disagreeing to the further advancement of the revision, the Committee should keep in mind that the revision should be fit for the purpose of the Classification which was to facilitate the establishment and interpretation of MRLs. One delegation expressed concern over a possible lengthy list of crops while MRLs were likely to be considered for only a few of them.

146. The Committee generally supported the working methods and procedures recommended by the electronic working group and agreed that further proposals should be prepared for the revision of the classification.

147. While agreeing to the usefulness of the representative crops in establishing commodity group MRLs, several delegations stressed that their selection should be flexible in order to reflect different situation

⁸ CRD 15.

⁹ CX/PR 07/39/4; CRD 5 (comments of Canada, India, Indonesia and Thailand); CRD17 (comments of China);

CRD 21 (comments of South Africa); CRD 24 (comments of European Community).

in different regions of the world. Several delegations preferred to develop principles and guidance on the selection of representative crops separately from the Classification because these issues were not directly related to the purpose of the revision. Other delegations believed that they should be discussed by the working group and included in the Classification.

148. After some discussion, the Committee agreed that principles and guidance on the selection of representative crops for the extrapolation of MRLs to commodity groups should be considered by the working group but should be developed as a separate document.

149. With regard to the time frame for the revision, some delegations pointed out that some commodity groups scheduled in 2011 were important for the work by the Codex Committee on Contaminants in Foods and proposed to bring them earlier in the calendar, while other delegations supported the proposed schedule in order to begin work on the commodity groups which were important for the establishment of pesticide MRLs.

150. The Committee tentatively agreed with the time table as listed in Paragraph 9 of the document, while noting that some adjustment might be necessary in the future. The Committee also agreed that the revised individual commodity groups should not be adopted until all the revisions had been completed in order to avoid problems, especially with the transfer of commodities from one group to the other. The Committee noted that the proposed revised commodity groups would be referred to relevant committees for information as appropriate. The Secretariat indicated that an electronic version of the classification in French and Spanish would be prepared.

Status of the Proposed Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds (N11-2004)

151. The Committee agreed to return the proposed draft revision of the two commodity groups, "Bulb Vegetables" and "Fruiting Vegetables, other than Cucurbits" in the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds to Step 3 and to circulate them for comments and further discussion at the next session.

152. The Committee agreed to re-establish the Electronic Working Group led by the Netherlands and the United States, working in English and open to all the Members and Observers, which would prepare:

- Revised commodity groups for "Bulb Vegetables" and "Fruiting Vegetables, other than Cucurbits", if necessary, taking into account the comments received in response to the Circular Letter;
- proposals for other commodity groups according to the agreed time table; and
- a draft document outlining the principles of and guidance on the selection of representative crops for the purposes of extrapolation of MRLs.

ALLOCATION OF FOOD CLASSIFICATION CODES FOR CERTAIN SPICES¹⁰

153. The Committee noted that at its 28th Session (2005) the Codex Alimentarius Commission had adopted a number of MRLs for spices and dried chili peppers and that it was necessary to allocate codes and numbers not only for spice groups but also for subgroups. The Committee agreed to allocate the following code numbers to these spice subgroups and dried chili peppers:

HS 190 - Spices, Seeds

HS 191 – Spices, Fruits and Berries

HS 193 – Spices, Roots and Rhizomes

HS 444 - Dried chili peppers

154. The Delegation of India proposed the allocation of code numbers for several additional spices subgroups. The Committee noted that while these might be needed at a later stage, codes should be allocated only for subgroups for which Codex MRLs existed or were being elaborated.

¹⁰ CX/PR 07/39/4-Add.2; CRD 5 (comments from Canada, India).

MATTERS RELATED TO METHODS OF ANALYSIS AND SAMPLING FOR PESTICIDE RESIDUES (AGENDA ITEM 7)¹¹

155. The Chair of the Working Group held during the session, Dr Josef Brodesser (IAEA) presented the main discussions and recommendations of the Working Group.

DISCUSSION PAPER ON APPLICATION OF PRACTICES ON THE ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY OF RESULTS (AGENDA ITEM 7a)¹²

156. The Committee recalled that the 29th Session of the Commission had adopted the Guidelines on the Estimation of Uncertainty of Results. Following the decision of the last session of the Committee, the Working Group had considered the replies to the Circular Letter requesting information on the application of measurement uncertainty, which had allowed useful discussions on the approach taken in several countries at the national level.

157. The Chair of the working group, referring to the discussion paper prepared by IAEA, highlighted the difficulties associated with the statistical approach to the estimation of measurement uncertainty, as the large number of pesticide/commodities combinations and the wide range of analytical methods used in pesticide analysis made it practically impossible in terms of workload to estimate individual uncertainty components. It was proposed to develop a simplified guidance document based on proficiency testing schemes, method validation studies, quality control and the Horwitz approach.

158. Several delegations expressed the view that as the concept of measurement uncertainty was not always well understood by official laboratories at the national level, it would be useful to develop simple and practical guidance on how to address measurement uncertainty, and therefore supported further work in this area.

159. The Committee noted a proposal to consider sampling aspects in view of the impact on the uncertainties of analytical results. Some delegations, however, pointed out that measurement uncertainty in the present context of the paper was limited to analytical methods and did not cover uncertainties associated with sampling issues.

160. The Committee agreed to re-establish an electronic working group coordinated by the Representative of IAEA, open to all interested members and Observers, and working in English, with the mandate to develop a guidance document on the estimation of uncertainty of results for the determination of pesticide residues. The Committee agreed that although it was premature to request the Commission's approval for new work at this stage, a discussion paper containing an outline of a guidance document should be developed and that the Committee would decide whether to undertake new work at its next session.

PROPOSED DRAFT REVISION OF THE LIST OF METHODS FOR PESTICIDE RESIDUE ANALYSIS (AGENDA ITEM 7b) $^{\rm 13}$

161. The Committee expressed its thanks to the delegations who had provided information on the methods of analysis for pesticide residues used at the national level and noted that this would allow an expansion of the current list, and that the corrections to some specific methods provided by some delegations would be inserted.

162. The Delegation of the EC informed the Committee that EC laboratories put their method validation data base on the website for Codex members¹⁴.

163. The Representative of IAEA confirmed that the FAO/IAEA Joint Division of Nuclear Techniques in Food and Agriculture would continue to provide the repository for methods for pesticide analysis proposed by members and considered by the Committee, and that the list of methods would be available on the IAEA website¹⁵.

¹¹ CL 2006/9-PR; CRD 26 (Report of the Working Group on Methods of Analysis and Sampling).

¹² CX/PR 07/39/5.

¹³ CX/PR 07/39/6, CX/PR 07/39/6-Add.1 (comments of Kenya & Republic of Korea), CRD 6 (comments of EC and Indonesia), CRD 13 (comments of Argentina), CRD 17 (comments of China), CRD21 (comments of South Africa).

¹⁴ <u>http://www.crl-pesticides-datapool.eu</u>

¹⁵ http://www-infocris.iaea.org/Download/Methods-Main.pdf

164. The Committee agreed that the list of methods would not be developed as a Codex document in the Step Procedure but would stay as repository list on the IAEA website.

DISCUSSION PAPER ON METHODS OF ANALYSIS FOR FAT-SOLUBLE PESTICIDES IN WHOLE MILK AND MILK FAT (AGENDA ITEM $7\mathrm{C})^{16}$

165. The Committee recalled that the Circular Letter CL 2006/9-PR had requested information on current practices for the analytical determination of fat-soluble pesticides in milk and milk fat. It was noted that in Australia different procedures were used by laboratories for the separation of fat from whole milk, and that in the United States fat was not separated from whole milk for the determination and monitoring of pesticides. As few replies had been received to the Circular Letter, it was proposed to ask for further information on current practices. The Delegation of Australia expressed the view that authoritative guidance on a reliable procedure for the physical separation of milk fat from whole milk was necessary and supported further work in this area.

166. The Committee agreed that a Circular Letter would be sent to request information on current practices for the analytical determination of fat-soluble pesticides in milk and milk fat, for further consideration at the next session.

Other matters

167. The Delegation of Morocco recalled its concern with the methods for the determination of dithiocarbamates due to false positives which might occur in some commodities, and especially capers, and indicated that the method submitted at the last session by the Republic of Korea could solve these problems. The Committee noted that the Republic of Korea would be preparing the method for the determination of dithiocarbamates for publication, including the data on its validation. The Delegation Republic of Korea expressed its will to cooperate with Morocco on the issue of falls positive results.

168. The Committee expressed its appreciation to Dr Brodesser and to the Working Group for their excellent work and agreed that the Working Group would be reconvened under his chairmanship in conjunction with the next session to consider all issues related to methods of analysis and sampling included in the Agenda for the Committee.

ESTABLISHMENT OF MRLS FOR PROCESSED AND READY-TO-EAT FOODS (AGENDA ITEM $8)^{17}$

169. The Committee recalled that its last session had agreed that the Delegation of the EC with the assistance of other interested delegations and Observers would prepare a paper on the use of processing studies and the establishment of MRLs for processed foods.

170. The Committee also recalled that the current policy of the Committee was not to establish MRLs for processed foods unless separate higher MRLs were necessary for specific processed commodities.

171. The Delegation of the EC introduced the document containing a summary of national policies used by member governments when dealing with the establishment of MRLs for processed and ready-to-eat foods and listing a number of recommendations on how to proceed with further work in this area. The Delegation indicated that, in most of the responding countries, studies were required and evaluated on the magnitude of residues in processed commodities in order to quantify levels of residues in these commodities, and that national policies differed on whether CXLs for raw agricultural commodities (RAC) were also applied to some processed commodities.

172. The Delegation of the United States emphasized that the list of commodities for which processing studies were required should be flexible and open-ended and clarified that in the USA, generic processing factors were used only for dietary exposure assessment.

173. The Observer from CropLife International was of the view that processing studies should only be required where the MRL/tolerance in the RAC exceeded the limit of quantification of the enforcement method and significant increase of the residues during processing was anticipated; indicated that OECD was

¹⁶ CX/PR 07/39/7.

¹⁷ CX/PR 07/39/8; CRD 9 (comments of India and Thailand); CRD 20 (comments of Crop Life International); CRD 22 (comments of the United States of America).

finalizing a guideline containing requirements for conducting processing studies and reporting data as well as details on core processing types for relevant agricultural commodities and options for extrapolation; and proposed that once available, the OECD guidelines be considered by the CCPR and JMPR.

174. Several delegations supported the recommendations proposed in the document as a way forward in this important area, stressing that clear criteria and guidance on the application of processing factors should be developed.

175. The JMPR Secretariat proposed that the term "and ready-to-eat" should be removed from the title of the document as the Committee does not establish MRLs for ready-to-eat foods. The Secretariat noted that the recommendations in the document had implications for the work of the JMPR and that they could be considered at this year's JMPR.

176. The Delegation of Australia indicated that it continues to support the policy reaffirmed by the 2003 JMPR that specific MRLs only be estimated for processed commodities in which residue is concentrated during the processing procedure. In all other cases, the MRL for raw agricultural commodity should apply to the processed food.

177. The Delegation of Argentina supported establishing MRLs for each of the main processed and ready-to-eat products traded internationally, which have been elaborated on the basis of a basic agricultural product for which an MRL has been fixed, but only when variations due to processing exceeds 150%.

178. The Delegation of Germany informed the Committee about a data base on the internet¹⁸, which is a collection of all public available processing factors and it can be searched for an active substance and/or for commodity.

179. The Committee was informed of the ongoing work of OECD on additional Test Guideline related to processing and the need for coordination with their work.

180. The Committee agreed to refer the paper CX/PR 07/39/8 and other relevant documents such as CRD 22, to the JMPR with the understanding that the comments of JMPR would be considered at the next session of the Committee in 2008 where the Committee would decide whether to develop guidelines on the application of processing factors. The Committee noted that the outcome of the consideration by JMPR and CCPR would be incorporated into the revision of the FAO Manual on the Submission and Evaluation of Pesticide Residues Data for the Estimation of Maximum Residue Levels in Food and Feed, and could lead to amendments to the Risk Analysis Principles Applied by the Committee on Pesticide Residues.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE CODEX PRIORITY LIST (AGENDA ITEM 9)¹⁹

181. The report of the ad hoc Working Group on Priorities was presented by Mr. Ian Reichstein (Australia), who highlighted the main issues discussed and the amendments proposed to the tentative list of scheduled compounds.

Scheduling of compounds

182. With respect to the requests for evaluation of new compounds for both toxicology and residues, the Working Group made the following proposals:

183. Spinetoram and mandipropamid were tentatively scheduled for 2008.

184. Regarding the late nominations for new compounds, spirotetramate, prothioconazole and chlorantraniliprole (Renaxapyr/EZY45), were tentatively scheduled for 2008.

185. Spirodiclofen, fluopicolide and pyroxsulam were tentatively scheduled for 2009 and dicamba was tentatively scheduled for 2010.

186. With respect to chemicals scheduled for re-evaluation, the Committee took note of the following changes to the 2007 schedule and agreed to the following changes to the 2008 schedule, reflected in the list in Appendix VIII.

¹⁸ <u>http://www.bfr.bund.de</u>

¹⁹ CL 2006/9-PR; ALINORM 06/29/24, Appendix VIII; CX/PR 07/39/9; CRD 1-Rev.1 (Report of the ad hoc Working Group); CRD 8 (comments of the EC, India, Thailand); CRD 23 (comments of South Africa); CRD 25 (comments of the USA).

187. Cypermethrins (118) is tentatively confirmed for residue re-evaluation in 2008 instead of 2007 pending clarification of completeness of data submissions. Periodic residue evaluation of profenofos (171) was also deferred to 2008 due to the full schedule for 2007.

188. Since the manufacturer no longer supported vinclozolin (159) for the establishment of Codex MRLs, the compound has been removed from the JMPR schedule.

189. Regarding residue evaluations for carbaryl (8), the Delegation of Thailand clarified that the request for an additional MRL related to chili peppers, not dried chili peppers, and the Delegation of USA requested consideration of an additional MRL for cranberry.

190. It was proposed to have the periodic residue evaluation for chlorpyrifos-methyl (90) moved from 2008 to 2009. In order to follow the previous recommendation of the committee to align toxicological and residue evaluation, both were confirmed on the 2009 schedule.

191. Bifenazate (219) is scheduled for residue evaluation in 2008 and the manufacturer was requested to provide written clarification on additional MRLs.

192. For azinphos-methyl (2), the manufacturer had indicated that data would not be available in time for the 2008 periodic re-evaluation of residue data and this was therefore confirmed for 2010 JMPR.

193. The JMPR secretariat indicated that the tentative 2008 schedule for residue evaluation was too full and requested to defer one full evaluation. After some discussion, the Committee agreed to defer the periodic re-evaluation of residue data of procymidone (136) to 2009.

194. Additional toxicological evaluations were requested during discussion of proposed MRLs under Agenda Item 5: review of ARfD for carbofuran (96), based on new data, and the clarification of the ARfD for oxamyl (126) requested by the EU. These were tentatively scheduled for 2008, pending timely provision of relevant data.

195. Regarding the requests for additional residue evaluations, the Committee agreed to add the following to the priority list:

- Boscalid (221) additional MRLs for hops, kiwifruit, tentatively scheduled for 2008
- Buprofenzin (173) additional MRLs for grapes, dried grapes, would be considered as part of the periodic re-evaluation scheduled for 2009
- Phorate (112) processing data for potatoes, scheduled for 2009
- Diphenylamine (030) scheduled for review of MRLs for whole milk and milk fat MRLs in 2008
- Chlorpropham (201) scheduled for review of MRLs whole milk and milk fat in 2008
- Clethodim (187), imidacloprid (206), methoxyfenozide (209) and spinosad (203) were proposed by the Delegation of the United States with data availability confirmed for February 2008. These compounds have been tentatively scheduled for additional MRLs: imidacloprid (206) spinosad (203) for 2008 and methoxyfenozide (209) for 2009. Clethodim(187) was not scheduled for additional MRLs and the Committee noted that this compound is awaiting periodic review.

196. On request of the Delegation of Thailand spices were included in the 2009 schedule for additional MRLs.

197. The Committee discussed in detail the draft priority list of chemicals as attached to CRD 1-Rev 1. The Committee agreed with the proposals of the Working Group and the amended schedule as listed in Appendix VIII. The Committee also agreed to forward this Appendix to the 30th Session of the Commission for approval as new work.

Fifteen-Year Rule for Periodic Re-evaluation

198. The Chair of the Working Group informed the Committee about the discussion of the Working Group to update the list of compounds eligible for periodic re-evaluation under the fifteen year rule. The Chair of the Working Group noted that Australia had provided a draft list of compounds falling under the fifteen year rule but not yet scheduled for periodic re-evaluation. The Committee agreed to the proposal of the Working Group to circulate this list for comments and advice from members and Observers on ongoing support for compounds and for data availability, and to consider a revised list of eligible compounds at the

next session for scheduling within the Periodic Review Program.

199. The Delegation of the EC drew the Committee's attention to a list provided by the EC to the Priorities Working Group on compounds important for agricultural products in trade from developing countries and requested governments and pesticide manufacturers to consider this list and to support these compounds through the Codex system. The JMPR Secretariat clarified that some of the compounds had already been evaluated by JMPR . The Delegation of the EC also drew the attention to a list of 55 substances fully evaluated in the EC which do not have Codex MRLs yet and which have no been scheduled for evaluation by the JMPR yet. The JMPR Secretariat clarified that some of the compounds had not already been evaluated by JMPR.

Modification of the Prioritization Criteria

200. The Chair of the Working Group informed the Committee that the Working Group had discussed a proposal by the US presented in CRD 25^{20} to amend the prioritization criteria to reflect that some new low hazard chemicals although not leading to detectable residues in agricultural products, might still need JMPR assessments in order to establish Codex MRLs. After some discussion the Committee agreed not to amend the criteria at this session, but give further consideration to the potential need for amendment at its next session.

Scheduling of the *ad hoc* Working Group Considerations

201. The Chair of the Working Group informed the Committee about the working group's discussion regarding the time-frame and scheduling of the working group activities. In his introduction, the Chair of the Working Group emphasized that Australia confirmed its willingness to continue providing stewardship of the prioritization process. However, more strict time-lines and rules need to be implemented in order to make the process more efficient, transparent and better managed. Also, the introduction of new processes of CCPR, namely the filing of concern forms and considerations of alternative GAPs requested when considering MRLs, requires a modification of the current process. The Delegation of Australia made a detailed proposal to establish strict timeframes for the nomination of pesticides to the priority list and to discuss the priority list at the plenary rather than at the working group held prior to each session. Although concerns were raised in regard to the practicalities of the proposal, the consensus of the Working Group was that a more rigorous process was necessary and the Working Group had agreed to recommend the following procedure to the Committee.

202. The Committee agreed that no physical Working Group would be convened at the next session and that an electronic Working Group would be established with the mandate specified in point f) below. The Working Group would be chaired by Australia, work in English only, and operate in conformity with the Guidelines on Electronic Working Groups.

203. After some discussion and minor amendments, the Committee agreed to the new procedure as follows:

- a. Manufacturers, when sending a request for evaluation to a nominating country, should copy this request to the Chair of the priorities electronic working group and to the FAO and WHO JMPR Secretariats. The JMPR Secretariat also requested to have an indication on the number of crops for which residue evaluations are requested.
- b. Country-sponsored submissions should be lodged with the Chair of the electronic working group on priorities and the JMPR Secretariat by 30 November.
- c. Submissions should indicate the current status of national registrations for the compound along with a clear indication of availability of data and national evaluations.
- d. The Chair will consult closely with the JMPR Secretariat prior to drafting a revised schedule. Submissions should include a commitment regarding the date that data will be available to JMPR.
- e. The Chair will draft a revised Priority List of Compounds for circulation via the Codex Secretariat through a Circular Letter with a two month comment period. The due date for comments and

 $^{^{20}}$ iv. must give rise to residues in or on a food or feed commodity moving in international trade, the presence of which is (or may be) a matter of public health concern and thus create (or have the potential to create) problems in international trade; or may give rise to residues that are not detectable for which it is deemed appropriate to establish Codex standards which demonstrate that no residues are expected (to avoid the potential for creating problems in international trade as the result of the lack of a standard)

proposed amendments to the Priority List is 1 March. These comments should be forwarded directly to the Chair of the Electronic Working Group and JMPR Secretariat.

- f. Following consideration of comments and amendments, the final Priority List of Compounds will be prepared for circulation to member countries during March. This will be the agenda paper for discussion in CCPR plenary.
- g. Should a late country-sponsored nomination be necessary, it may be considered by the Chair and the JMPR Secretariat. The Chair will provide notice of a late nomination to member countries via email correspondence or by means preferred by Codex Secretariat.
- h. By the time the Priority List of Compound is considered in plenary, member countries will all have had an opportunity to seek amendment or provide comment, and will still have the CCPR agenda paper well in advance of the meeting.
- i. Major discussions on the priority list should be handled in plenary.
- j. Plenary discussion would cover amendments resulting from considerations of the MRLs and any final changes to the priority list which may be considered necessary.
- k. Plenary discussions would provide full transparency and inclusivity.
- 1. Discussions and the final Priority List of Compounds will be recorded in the draft CCPR report and adopted by the Committee.

DISCUSSION PAPER ABOUT ENFORCEMENT OF CODEX MRLs (AGENDA ITEM 10)²¹

204. The Committee recalled that its last session had discussed the issue relating to the enforcement of MRLs at the national level and welcomed the proposal of the former Chairperson (Co-chairperson of the current session) to prepare a discussion paper for this session on how Codex MRLs are used at the national level for consideration.

205. The Co-chairperson, referring to the Discussion Paper (CX/PR 07/39/10), stressed that, while noting that every country has the right to establish its own legislation, including the establishment of pesticide MRLs, enforcement of national MRLs that were stricter than Codex MRLs could create a trade problem. The Co-chairperson also suggested that because this same problem may occur with other Codex Standards, it might be worthwhile to bring this matter to the attention of the Codex Committee on Food Import and Export Inspection and Certification System (CCFICS).

206. The Committee expressed its appreciation for the preparation of this paper and agreed that this was a very important issue that impacted on the value of the work done by CCPR, the purpose of which was to establish MRLs in order to protect the consumers' health and ensure fair practices in food trade.

207. Many delegations stressed the importance of this matter and referred to the trade problems arising when importing countries applied national or regional MRLs which were lower than Codex MRLs. These delegations supported the recommendation in the Discussion Paper to collect information on how many national MRLs were set at a lower level than Codex MRLs with a view to further consideration by the Committee. Some other delegations were of the view that this issue should be referred to the SPS Committee.

208. Some delegations expressed the view that MRLs should be based on scientific risk assessment and also drew the attention of the Committee to problems arising from the use of analytical methods in the determination of pesticide MRLs.

209. The Delegation of the EC referred to its written comments and explained the procedure on how Codex MRLs are taken into account in the EC legislation. The Delegation drew the attention of the Committee to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, which did not cover the issue under discussion, and stated that the proposal to refer this matter to the CCFICS should be carefully considered as its Terms of Reference did not seem to cover this issue.

210. The Codex Secretariat pointed out that the Acceptance Procedure of the Codex standards had been abolished and therefore no notification of country acceptance was considered in the framework of Codex, and that all the matters related to trade concern could be raised by WTO members at the SPS Committee.

²¹ CX/PR 07/39/10; CRD 7 (comments of the EC, India, Indonesia and Thailand); CRD14 (comments of Argentina); CRD17 (comments of China); CRD 21 (comments of South Africa), CRD 27 (comments of Brazil).

The Codex Secretariat recalled that the role of the Committee was to establish MRLs and other documents on pesticide residues, and that any further action should be consistent with the mandate of the Committee and of the Codex Alimentarius Commission.

211. After a very intensive discussion, the Committee agreed to inform the Commission of the discussion and request its guidance and advice on how the issue should be addressed.

OTHER BUSINESS AND FUTURE WORK (AGENDA ITEM 11)

PAPER FROM THE JOINT FAO/WHO JMPR SECRETARIAT ON SEVERAL ISSUES RELATED TO THE WORKING RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN JMPR AND CCPR (AGENDA ITEM 11)²²

212. The JMPR Secretariat introduced the paper and referred to the initiatives taken in recent years to accelerate the discussion and adoption process of Codex MRLs. The document made several recommendations relating to the working relationship between JMPR and CCPR, in order to facilitate the implementation of the decisions taken earlier by this Committee and by the Committee on General Principles.

Work Sharing

213. The JMPR Secretariat informed the Committee of the experience gained with work sharing pilot projects, and noted that the pilot phase had been concluded and that work sharing was now routine, with national evaluations being useful in the preparation of compound evaluations.

214. In reply to a question on the ongoing evaluation of the efficiency of work sharing, the JMPR Secretariat indicated that the pilot project had been evaluated (see Agenda Item 4) and that a detailed quantitative assessment would be time consuming but indicated that qualitative comparisons could be considered and presented in a summary form in the future.

215. The Committee generally supported the use of work sharing and agreed to revise the document entitled "Pesticide Information for CCPR Working Group on Priorities" adding a new entry about availability of evaluations from national and regional authorities.

216. The Committee noted that calls for data for future JMPR meetings would include requests for submission of available national and regional evaluations supporting the worksharing approach, including access to all relevant original studies. Codex members and Observers were asked to arrange for the submission in a timely manner.

Criteria for prioritisation

217. The Committee noted the explanations provided in paragraphs 11 to 14 relating to the amended procedures for requesting additional MRLs or a review of an existing MRL, as described in the Explanatory Note at the end of the revised *Criteria for Prioritisation Process of Compounds for Evaluation by JMPR*.

Concerns regarding MRLs

218. The JMPR Secretariat advised that the Committee had agreed at its last session that governments could submit a concern form detailing their scientific concerns about the advancement of a specific MRL, and the paper explained how these concern forms would be handled and established timeframes for consideration of the concerns. It was clarified that the concern form was intended for JMPR not for CCPR, and that it was important that detailed justification and relevant scientific data were provided to allow JMPR to respond to the concern.

219. The Delegation of Morocco sought clarification as to languages in which the data could be submitted and whether it would be translated. The JMPR Secretariat clarified that JMPR worked only in English and that the data submitted in other Codex languages would be considered but would need to be translated so that it could be used in JMPR.

220. The Committee agreed that at each meeting, the CCPR Chair would announce the specific deadline that applied for the submission of concerns forms. If possible, depending on the JMPR workload, these concerns would be addressed in the same year but in some cases that might need to be scheduled for subsequent JMPR meetings. When a concern form was not submitted within the specified deadline, the

²² CX/PR 07/39/11-Rev.1; CRD 12 (comments of India).

JMPR would consider the concerns at a future meeting and the CCPR would subsequently decide on the status of the MRL.

221. The Committee noted that future JMPR reports would contain a special section including all requests received and provide answers where possible. The section would also identify those concerns to be addressed at subsequent meetings or for which no forms had been submitted.

222. Some delegations expressed the view that if the concern forms were not submitted in time, the proposed MRLs would be advanced to Step 8 at the following session of the CCPR. The Codex Secretariat advised that whether the MRL was forwarded to Step 8 would depend on the consensus reached in the Committee.

Availability of JMPR reports

223. The JMPR Secretariat recalled that an important condition for using the procedure to advance proposed draft MRL to Steps 5/8 was the publication of the JMPR report by early February and suggested the following deadlines to ensure that the report would be available in time:

a) The Data Directory for residue data of the compound should be available by 1 September (starting in 2008 for the 2009 JMPR), i.e., the Residue Data Directory will be made available one year in advance of JMPR;

b) The full submission of all residue data is required by 30 November (starting in 2010 for the 2011 JMPR);

c) It was also noted JMPR would also welcome submissions earlier than the above deadlines.

224. The Committee agreed with these proposals in order to ensure timely availability of the JMPR report and to facilitate consideration of MRLs in the Committee.

Consideration of Alternative GAPs

225. The Committee noted that this issue was related to the document prepared by the United States which was considered under Agenda Item $4(a)^{23}$. Both items were discussed together.

226. The JMPR Secretariat recalled that the JMPR had identified two approaches to recommending an MRL relating to the highest residues from a national GAP: the retrospective approach to consider an alternative GAP when requested to do so by CCPR, and the prospective approach to consider an alternative GAP when the IESTI exceeds the ARfD. The 38th Session of the CCPR had agreed that the retrospective approach was mainly applicable for old compounds, and that the prospective approach would become the routine approach. On the basis of the experience gained with these approaches at the 2006 JMPR, the JMPR Secretariat proposed that, in future, requests for retrospective GAPs be removed from the agenda of JMPR if no updated information was submitted (including information on current GAP which is always needed) and no support for such an evaluation was provided by sponsors or Codex Members at a session of the CCPR.

227. The Committee agreed with the approach proposed by JMPR. The Committee noted that the question of alternative GAPs would be reconsidered at the next session when JMPR comments on document CX/PR 07/39/2-Add.1 presented under Agenda Item 4 (a) would be available. The Committee also agreed that there might be a need to revise the Risk Analysis Principles applied by the CCPR in the future to include the alternative GAP procedure.

UPDATE OF EC LEGISLATION

228. The Delegation of the EC informed the Committee that currently approximately 50% of the pesticide MRLs were harmonized in the EC while the remaining MRLs were set at the national level and might differ from country to country, and that the legislation on pesticide MRLs was expected to be completely harmonized following publication of the new Regulation 396/2005. One of the 4 annexes in the Regulations relates to MRLs that were not previously harmonized. The Committee was informed that finalisation of this list was currently the priority within the European Commission, the Member States and the EFSA and the work it is likely to be completed in 2007. The Delegation explained that the development of this annex has involved the collection of all member state MRLs and Codex MRLs in order to select candidate EU MRLs. EFSA opinions on these candidate MRLs are available on the EFSA website. Further work on these MRLs is ongoing in the EFSA, the Commission and the Member States on the basis of

²³ CX/PR 07/39/2-Add.1

available information, such as residue trials and toxicology data.

229. For some substances available information did not allow to set an EU MRLs. In the absence of an EU MRL, the default MRL set at 0.01 mg/kg would apply. However, in order to avoid technical barriers to trade at the import stage, the EC would consider setting import tolerances for these cases and for this purpose was gathering relevant information from countries outside the EU, especially from exporting countries.

230. The new system was intended for application throughout the whole territory of the EC, and would enter into force on publication of all the annexes to the Regulation. The EC would notify the SPS Committee of all the substances which were not used in the EU and for which import tolerances could be set.

DATE AND PLACE OF NEXT SESSION (AGENDA ITEM 12)

231. The Committee was informed that its 40th Session was tentatively scheduled to be held in Beijing, China, from 14 through 19 April 2008, the final arrangements being subject to confirmation by the Host Country and the Codex Secretariat.

Annex 1

SUMMARY STATUS OF WORK

Subject	Step	Action by	Reference
Draft and Revised Draft MRLs	8	Governments, 30 th CAC	Paras 44 - 136 and Appendix II
Proposed Draft and Revised Draft MRLs	5/8	Governments, 30 th CAC	Paras 44 - 136 and Appendix III
Proposed Draft MRLs	5	30 th CAC, Governments, CCPR 40	Paras 44 – 136 and Appendix IV
Codex Maximum Residue Limits Recommended for Revocation		Governments, 29 th CAC	Paras 44- 136 and Appendix V
Proposed Draft and Draft MRLs Retained at Steps 7 and 4	7/4	JMPR, Governments, CCPR (depending on the year of the JMPR clarification)	Paras 44 – 136 and Appendix VI and Appendix VII
Draft MRLs Returned to Step 6	6	Governments, JMPR, 40 CCPR	Paras 47 - 142 and Appendix VII
Proposed Draft Revision of the Codex Classification of Foods and Animal Feeds	2/3	Netherlands ²⁴ , Governments, 40 th CCPR	Paras 142 - 152
Discussion papers:			
Estimation of Uncertainty of Results for the determination of Pesticide Residues		EWG lead by IAEA, 40 th CCPR	Paras 156 - 160
Procedure for Separation of Milk Fat from Whole Milk		Governments, IAEA, 40 th CCPR	Paras 165 - 166
New work:			
Priority List of Pesticides (New Pesticides and Pesticides under Periodic Review)	1	30 th session of the CAC, Governments, Australia, 40 th CCPR	Paras 180 – 202 and Appendix VIII
Discontinuation of work:			
Discontinuation of Work on the Proposed Draft and Draft Maximum Residue Limits for Pesticides		Governments, 30 th session of the CAC	Paras 44 – 136 and Appendix IX

²⁴ USA, Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Japan, New Zealand and interested members and observers and the Representatives of FAO and WHO.

APPENDIX I

LIST OF PARTICIPANTS

Chairman of the Session Prêsident de la Session Presidente de la Session

Dr Zongmao CHEN Academician, Chinese Academy of Engineering Professor Chinese Academy of Agricultural Sciences No.1, Yunqi Road Hangzhou/Zhejiang 310008 P.R. CHINA Tel: +86 571 8665 0100 Fax: +86 571 8665 0056 Email:ccprc@agri.gov.cn zmchen2006@163.com

Co-Chairman of the Session Co-Prêsident de la Session Co-Presidente de la Seesion

Dr Hans JEURING Senior Public Health Officer Food and Consumer Product Safety Authority P.O. Box 19506 2500 CM Den Haag Tel: +31 70 4484808 Fax: +31 70 4484061 Email:hans.jeuring@vwa.nl

Angola

Dr Cláudia R.Sicato DIAS Coordenadora do Comite de Residuos de Medicamentos Veterinarios e Pesticidas nos Alimentos-Codex/Angola 7°-Andar-Largo Antono Jacinto/MINADER LUANDA/ANGOLA Tel: +244 923 403039 Fax: +244 222 390238 E-mail: claudiasicato@yahoo.com.br

Dr Maria Pedro GASPAR Membro do Codex-Angola Tel: +244 923520950 E-mail: mpgaspar2002@yahoo.com.br Ms Ana GONCALVES Biologyst Codex-Angola Luanda Angola Tel: +912243620

Ms Venceslau Monteiro MONTEIRO 2°-Second Secretary-Diplomatic Embassy of Angola Ta Yuan Diplomatic-1-8-1 Beijing Tel: +8610 65326968

Argentina/Argentine

Dr Eduardo ABLIN Ambassador Ministry of Foreign Affairs, International Trade and Worship Argentina Tel: +54-11-4819-7877 Fax:+54-11-4819-7566 E-mail: era@mrecic.gov.ar Dr Juan Carlos MORELLI Ambassador of Argentina Embassy of Argentina San Li Tun, East Road 5, Bldg,11 Beijing, China Tel: +86-10-6532 1406 Fax:+86-10-6532 2319 E-mail: echin@public.bta.net.cn

Ing Agr Mariano RIPARI Agricultural Counsellor, Agricultural Office Embassy of Argentina San Li Tun, East Road 5, Bldg. 11 Beijing, P. R. China Tel: + 86-10-6532 0790 Fax:+86-10- 6532 0270 E-mail: mripari@agrichina.org

Dr Omar Ernesto ODARDA Agricultural Office Embassy of Argentina, San Li Tun, East Road 5, Bldg. 11 Beijing, P. R. China Tel: + 86-10-6532 0790 Fax:+86-10- 6532 0270 E-mail: odarda@agrichina.org

Dr Laura BERNARDI BONOMI SENASA Paseo Colon439-2do.Piso (1063)Buenos Aires Argentina Tel: +54-11-4242-2502 E-mail: lboomi@velocom.com.ar

Dr Carlos CAPPARELLI Executive Director-CIAFA Rivadavia 1367-7°'B'(C1033AAD)Buenos Aires -Argentina Tel: (+54-11)4381-2742 Fax:(+54-11)4383-1562 E-mail: carloscapparelli@ciafa.org.ar

Dr Juan Carlos IGLESIAS PEREZ Director-CIAFA Florencio Saenchez 3040,2° Piso(B1642GIB)Buenos.Aires San Isidro - Argentina Tel: +54-11-4735-6800(PABX) Fax:+54-11-4708-0404 E-mail: juaniglesias@ipesa-sa.com.ar

Dr Juan Calos IGLESIAS PEREZ Alina-Asoc. Latinoamericana de la Industria Nacional de Agroquimicos 201 South Biscayne Bvld. FL. 15 Miami, FL, USA

Australia/Australie

Mr Kevin HEALY Acting Manager, Plant Programs – National Residue Survey Department of Agriculture Fisheries and Forestry GPO Box 858 Canberra ACT 2601 Australia Tel: +61 2 6272 3436 Fax:+61 2 6272 4023 E-mail: Kevin.healy@daff.gov.au

Mr Ian REICHSTEIN Acting Director National Residue Survey Australian Government Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestr GPO Box 858, CANBERRA ACT 2601 Australia Tel: +61 2 6271 6642 Fax:+61 2 6272 4023 E-mail: ian.reichstein@daff.gov.au

Ms Janis BAINES Section Manager, Food composition Evaluation & Modelling Food Standards Australia New Zealand PO Box 7186 CANBERRA ACT 2610 Australia Tel: 02 6271 2234 Fax:02 6271 2278 E-mail: janis.baines@foodstandards.gov.au

Mr Kevin BODNARUK 26/12 Phillip Mall West Pymble NSW 2073 Australia Tel: +61 2 94993833 Fax:+61 2 94996055 E-mail: akc_con@zip.com.au

Ms Angela GAW Senior Project Officer 475 Mickleham Road Attwood VIC 3049 Australia Tel: +61 3 9217 4440 Fax:+61 3 9217 4331 E-mail: angela.gaw@dpi.vic.gov.au

Mr Bill MURRAY GRDC Consultant 22 Thornley Close Ferntree Gully VIC 3156 Australia Tel: +61 3 97638396 E-mail: wjmurray@bigpond.net.au Mr Graham ROBERTS Representative of Department of Primary Industries Victoria 4 Allipol Court Briar Hill Victoria 3088 Australia Tel: +61 3 9435 0863 E-mail: grarob@bigpond.net.au

Dr Pieter SCHEELINGS Principal Scientist 39 Kessels Road Coopers Plains, Brisbane, QLD 4108 Australia Tel: +61 7 3274 9095 Fax:+61 7 3274 9186 E-mail: Pieter_scheelings@health.qld.gov.au

Belgium/Belgique/Bélgica

Mr Bruno DUJARDIN Pesticide Residue Expert Federal Public Service of Public Health, Food Chain Safety and Environment Eurostation Bloc II, Place Victor Horta 40 bte 10 1060 Brussels Belgium Tel: +32 2 524 72 68 Fax:+32 2 524 72 99 E-mail: bruno.dujardin@health.fgov.be

Dr Ir Olivier PIGEON Head of the Pesticides Residues Laboratory Walloon Agricultural Research Centre Pesticides Research Department Rue du Bordia 11, 5030 Gembloux Gembloux Belgium Tel: +32 81 62 52 62 Fax:+32 81 62 52 72 E-mail: pigeon@cra.wallonnie.be

Brazil/Brésil/Brasil

Mr Mauricio LYRIO Embassy of Brazil Counselor Head of Trade Policy Tel: +8610-6532-2120 Fax:+8610-6532-2751 E-mail: lyrio@brazil.org.cn Mr Antonio MIYASAKA Agronomist Ministry of Agriculture ESPLANADA DOS MINISTÉRIOS BLOCO "D" ANEXO A SALA 343-Brasília Brazil Tel: +55 61 3218-2808 Fax:+55 61 3225-5341 E-mail: antoniosm@agricultura.gov.br

Dr Ricardo VELLOSO Risk Assessment Manager National Agency of Health Surveillance SEPN 511, Bloco A, Edifício Bittar II Brasília Brazil Tel:+55-61-3448-6209 Fax:+55-61-3448-6274 E-mail: ricardo.velloso@anvisa.gov.br

Dr Eloisa Dutra CALDAS Professor University of Brasilia Campus Universitario Brasília, 70900-910 Brazil Tel: 55-61-3307-3671 Fax:55-61-3273-0105 E-mail: eloisa@unb.br

Mr Lucas DANTAS Manager(National Agency of Health Surveillance) SEPN 511, Bloco A, Edifício Bittar II Brasília Brazil Tel: 55-61-3448-6291 Fax:55-61-3448-6274 E-mail: lucas.medeiros@anvisa.gov.br

Ms Cleide OLIVEIRA Rua Breves, 363 – 04645-000 Brazilian Association of Generic Pesticides São Paulo Brazil Tel: 55 11 3371-1120 Fax:55 11 3371-1120 E-mail: ocleide@uol.com.br cleide@vignabrasil.com.br

Mr Rogério PEREIRA DA SILVA Food Inspector Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock and Food Supply Esplanada dos Ministérios, Bloco D, Edifício Sede, Sala 347, 70043-900 Brasília Brazil Tel: +55 61 3218-2322 Fax: +55 61 3225-4738 E-mail: rogeriops@agricultura.gov.br Mr Marcos Francisco Caleiro SANTOS Technical Manager(Associação Nacional de Defesa Vegetal - ANDEF) Rua Capitão Antonio Rosa, 376 – 13° Andar São Paulo - SP Brasil Tel: 0551130875034 Fax:0551130852637 E-mail: caleiro@andef.com.br

Dr Denilson SANTOS Expert (National Agency of Health Surveillance) SEPN 511, Bloco A, Edifício Bittar II Brasília Brazil Tel: 55-61-3448-6315 Fax:55-61-3448-6274 E-mail: denilson.santos@anvisa.gov.br

Ms Heloisa TOLEDO, H.B. Head of Technic Department PLANTEC/Rod.SP 147 Km 128 – CP 39 13495-000 - Iracemápolis - SP Brazil Tel: 0055 19 3456 2100 Fax:0055 19 3456 2100 E-mail: hetoledo@hotmail.com

Canada/ Canadá

Dr Ariff ALLY Head, FREAS, Health Evaluation Division 2720 Riverside Drive Ottawa Canada Tel: 613-736-3549 E-mail: ariff_ally@hc-sc.gc.ca

Dr Peter CHAN Director General Health Evaluation Division Pest Management Regulatory Agency 2720 Riverside Drive Ottawa, Ontario Canada Tel: +613-736-3510 Fax:+613-736-3909 E-mail: Peter_Chan@hc-sc.gc.ca

Ms Donna GRANT Supervising Chemist, Pesticide Residues Canadian Food Inspection Agency 3650-36 Street, N.W. Calgary, Alberta Canada T2L 2L1 Tel: (403) 299-7600 Fax:(403) 221-3293 E-mail: grantd@inspection.gc.ca

Chile/Chili

Prof Roberto H.GONZALEZ Professor of Entomology University of Chile P.O.BOX 1004 Santiago Chile Tel: +56-2-9785714 Fax:+56-2-9785812 E-mail: rgonzale@uchile.cl

Ms Jimena LOPEZ Ingeniero Agronomo Asociacion de Exportadores de Chile Santiago Chile Tel: +56-2-4724722 Fax:+56-2-2064163 E-mail: jlopez@asoex.cl

China/Chine

Prof Xiaojun XUD Deputy Director General Department of Market and Economy Information Ministry of Agriculture 11 Nongzhanguan Nanli, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-64193156 Fax:0086-10-64193315 E-mail: xuxiaojun@ agri.gov.cn

Dr Leiming CAI Director Supervision and Test Center for Pesticide Safety Evaluation No. 8, Eastern Shenliao Road Shenyang P.R. China Tel: 0086-24-62353468 Fax:0086-24-62353458 E-mail: Imcai@toxisafe.com

Dr Xiaogang CHU Deputy Director of Division(Chinese Academy of Inspection and Quarantine) No.3, Gaobeidian North Road, chaoyang District Beijing P.R. China Tel: 086-10-85791012 Fax:0086-10-85778904 E-mail: xgchu@vip.163.com Director of Division (Development Center of

Science & Technology, Ministry of Agriculture)

Dr Yehan CUI

8 Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District, 100026 Beijing P.R. China Tel: 86-10-64195082 Fax:86-10-64194550 E-mail: cuivehan@agri.gov.cn Prof Zhixian FAN Professor (College of Chemical Engineering, Qingdao University of Science & Technology) No.53 Zhengzhou Road, Qingdao P.R. China Tel: 86 532 84023194 Fax:86 532 84022917 E-mail: fanzx@qust.edu.cn Prof Ying JI Director of pesticide residue division, ICAMA NO.22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District 100026 Beijing P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-64194106 Fax:0086-10-64194107 E-mail: jiying@ agri.gov.cn Mr Foowing LEE Senior Chemist (Food and Environmental Hygiene Department) 43/F, Queensway Government Offices, 66 Queensway, Hong Kong P.R. China Tel: +852 2867 5022 Fax:+852 2810 6717 E-mail: fwlee@fehd.gov.hk Dr Zhiyong LI Section Chief (Tianjin Food and Drug Administration) 79 Yueyang Road, Heping District Tianjin P.R. China Tel: 0086-22-23397166 Fax:0086-22-23135515 E-mail: Tj_spaq@sina.com Prof Canping PAN Depart of Applied Chemistry, China Agricultural University Beijing,100094 P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-62733219 Fax:0086-10-62733620

E-mail: panc@cau.edu.cn

Dr Xiongwu QIAO Shanxi Academy of Agricultural Sciences Taiyuan P.R. China Tel: 0086-351-7581865 Fax:0086-351-7126215 E-mail: xwqiao@public.ty.sx.cn

Dr Jieping SHI Director of Division of State Food And Drug Administration A38,Beilishi road, West District ,100810 Beijing P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-88330509 Fax:0086-10-88370947 E-mail: shijp@sda.gov.cn

Dr Qiang WANG Zhenjiang Academy of Agricultural Sciences 198 Shiqiao Road, Hangzhou 310021 P.R. China Tel: 0086-571-86404355 Fax:0086-571-86401834 E-mail: qiangwang2003@sina.com

Dr. Yongning WU Professor Chinese Center for Disease Control and Prevention National Institute of Nutrition and Food Safety 29 Nanwei Road, 100050 Beijing P.R. China Tel: 86-10-83132933 Fax:86-10-83132933 E-mail: wuyn@public.bta.net.cn

Dr Changxing XU Director of Division(Standardization Administration) 9 Madian East Road Haidian District,100088 Beijing P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-82262657 Fax:0086-10-82260687 E-mail: xuchx@sac.gov.cn

Mr Yong XU vice-director Institute for the Control of Agrochemicals Zhejiang Department of Agricuture 29 Fengqi East Road Hangzhou P.R. China Tel: 0086-571-86757005 Fax:0086-571-86757019 E-mail: xuyong-hz@yahoo.com.cn Prof Dajin YANG Professor (Chinese Center for Disease Control and Prevention) 29 Pan Jia Yuan Nanli,100021 Beijing P.R. China Tel: +8610-87789835 Fax:+8610-67711813 E-mail: ydj66513@sina.com

Dr Samuel Tzek-kiu YEUNG Principal Medical Officer (Food and Environmental Hygiene Department) 43/F, Queensway Government Offices, 66 Queensway HONGKONG P.R. China Tel: +852 2867 5185 Fax:+852 2893 3547 E-mail: stkyeung@fehd.gov.hk

Ms Yanxia ZHAO Director (Ministry of Commerce) 2 DONGCHANGAN STREET 100731 Beijing P.R. China Tel: 00 86 10 65197242 Fax:00 86 10 6519 7310 E-mail:zhaoyanxia@mofcom.gov.cn

Prof Yongquan ZHENG Deputy Director Chinese Academy of Agricultural Science Beijing P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-62815908 Fax:0086-10-62895365 E-mail: yqzheng@ippcaas

Mr Zuntao ZHENG Pesticide Residue Division Institute for the Country of Agrochemiscal, MOA NO.22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing P.R. China Tel: 0086-10-64194077 Fax:0086-10-64194107 E-mail: zjuzzt@ hotmail.com

Costa Rica

Mr Roger RUIZ Head of Pesticide Residue Laboratory Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Apdo. 70-3006 Heredia Costa Rica Tel: (506) 260-4925 Fax:(506) 260-4925 E-mail: rruiz@protecnet.go.cr

Cuba

Ms Lissette Orta Arrazcaeta Jefa del Laboratorio de Residuos de Plaguicidas y Contaminacion Ambiental Instituto de Investigaciones de Sanidad Vegetal 110 # 514 / 5ta B y 5ta F,Playa Ciudad Habana Cuba Tel: 53 (7) 208 44 16 Fax:53 (7) 208 44 16 E-mail: orta@xasa.com

Denmark/Danemark/Dinamarca

Ms Mette HOLM Scientific adviser Danish Veterinary and Food Administration Morkhoj Bygade 19 2860 Soborg Denmark Tel: +45 3395 6408 Fax:+45 3395 6060 E-mail: meth@fvst.dk

Dr Bodil Hamborg JENSEN Senior adviser Technical University of Denmark, National Food Institute, Department of Food Chemistry Moerkhoej Bygade 19, 2860 Soeborg Denmark Tel: + 45 72 34 74 68 Fax:+ 45 72 34 70 01 E-mail: bhj@food.dtu.dk

Dominica/Dominique

Mr Median LA ROCQUE Produce Chemist Produce Chemist Lab Botanical Botanzcal Gardens Roseau Dominica Tel: +1767 4432401 ext 3826 E-mail: jahrok@hotmail.com

Dominican Republic/République dominicaine/República Dominicana

Ms Norma RODRÍGUEZ ENC. UNIDAD RESIDUOS PLAGUICIDAS (SEA). C/ TULIPÁN, EDIFICIO I, APTO. 7-A, JARDINES DEL NORTE. SANTO DOMINGO, D.N. Dominican Republic Tel: +1809-541-7375 Fax:+1809-541-0382 E-mail: normarodribaez@hotmail.com

European Community /Communauté Européenne / Comunidad Europea

Dr Eva ZAMORA ESCRIBANO Administrator Responsible for Codex Issues Europea Community Rue Froissart 101 1049 Brussels Belgium Tel: (+32-2) 299 86 82 Fax:(+32-2) 299 85 66 E-mail:eva-maria.zamora-escribano@ec.europa.eu

Dr Bastiaan DRUKKER Rue F101 1049 Brussels Belgium Tel: 00 32 2 296 5779 Fax:00 32 2 296 5963 E-mail: bas.drukker@ec.europa.eu

Dr Luis MARTIN PLAZA 1049 Rue F 101 Bruxelles Belgium Tel: 00 32 2 29 93736 Fax:00 32 2 29 65963 E-mail: luis.martin-plaza@ec.europa.eu

Dr Hubert ZIPPER EC-Community Reference Laboratory for Single Residue Methods Schaflandstrasse 3/2 D-70736 Fellbach Germany Tel: +49-711-3426-1141 Fax:+49-711-588176 E-mail: Hubert.Zipper@cvuas.bwl.de

Egypt/Égypte/Egipto

Eng Ahmed Abo Zaid ELIAN Standards Specialist Egyptian Organization for Standardizatio and Quality (EOS) Cairo, Egypt Tel: +202-2845531 Fax:+202-2845507 E-mail: ahmedabozaid_eos@yahoo.com

El Salvador

Ms Elizabeth DE AGUILA Head of Quality Control of Pesticide and Residues of Pesticides, MAG-OIRSA Chemical Engineer 01-189 San Salvador El Salvador Tel: (503)22941016 Fax:(503)22941016 E-mail: laboirsa@hotmail.com

Finland/Finlande/Finlandia

Mr Vesa TUOMAALA Senior Adviser Ministry of Trade and Industry P.O.Box 32, FIN-00023 Government Helsinki Finland Tel: +358-9-1606 3553 Fax:+358-9-1606 2670 E-mail: vesa.tuomaala@ktm.fi

Ms Tiia MÄKINEN-TÖYKKÄ

Senior Officer Finnish Food Safety Authority Evira Mustialankatu 3 FI-00790 Helsinki Finland Tel: +358-2077 25190 Fax:+358-2077 25195 E-mail: tiia.makinen@evira.fi

France/France/Francia

Mr Pascal AUDEBERT Point de Contact du Codex Alimentarius en France Premier Ministre - Secrétariat général des Affaires européennes Carré Austerlitz 2, boulevard Diderot 75572 Paris cedex 12 France Tel: +33 144 87 16 03 Fax:+33 144 87 10 18 E-mail: pascal.audebert@sgae.gouv.fr

Georgia/Géorgie

Mr David MESKHISHIVILI Vice-Minister Ministry of Health, Labour, Social Affairs Tbilisi Georgia Tel: +99577288877 E-mail: meskho1@yahoo.com

Germany/Allemagne/Alemania

Dr Wilhelm VON DER HUDE Administrator Federal Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Consumer Protection Rochus Str. 1 D-53123 Bonn Germany Tel: +49 1888 529 4661 Fax:+49 1888 529 4943 E-mail: wilhem.vonderhude@bmelv.bund.de Dr Ursula BANASIAK Director and Professor Federal Institute for Risk Assessment Thielallee 88-92 D-14195 Berlin Germany Tel: +49 30 8412 3337 Fax:+49 30 8412 3008 E-mail: ursula.banasiak@bfr.bund.de

Dr Karsten HOHGARDT Wissenschaftlicher Direktor Federal Office of Consumer Protection and Food Safety Messeweg 11-12 38104 Brauschweig Germany Tel: +49 531 299 3503 Fax:+49 531 299 3002 E-mail: karsten.hohgardt@bvl.bund.de

Dr Hans-Dieter JUNGBLUT Advisor BASF AG 67117 Limburgerhof Germany Tel: 0049 621 60 27774 Fax:0049 621 60 27092 E-mail: hans-dieter.jungblut@basf. Com

Dr Otto KLEIN Product Safety Manager Bayer CropScience AG Alfred-Nobel-Str. 50, Bldg 6100 40789 Monheim Germany Tel: +49-2173-383463 Fax:+49-21738-383469 E-mail: otto.klein@bayercropscience.com

Ghana

Prof George AYERNOR P.O. Box LG 134, Legon Accra Ghana Tel: +233-244-360772 Fax:N/A E-mail: sayernor@yahoo.com

Mr Cheetham MINGLE Regulatory officer Food & Drugs Board, P.O. BOX CT 2783 Accra - Cantonments Ghana Tel: 00233-21--661248 Fax:00233-21--660389 E-mail: tawa_gh@yahoo.com Mr Peter Maxwell BINEY Assistant Director Plant Protection and Regulatory Services Directorate Ministry of Food & Agriculture P.O. BOX M 37 Accra Ghana Phone: +233-20-8161608 E-mail:pmbiney@yahoo.com

Guinea/Guinée

Mr Mamy-Pé ZAGAÏMOU Chef Section Prévention des Pathologies Végétales et Lutte Contre les Grands Fléaux BP 576 Conakry République de Guinée Tel: +224 60 54 27 03 / 64 42 31 03 E-mail: sibamou1961@yahoo.fr / dpvg@biasy.net

Hungary/Hongrie/Hungría

Dr Mária SZERLETICSNÉ TÚRI Head of Dept. Chemical Contaminants in Food, NIFSN(National Institute for Food Safety and Gyáli út 3/a. Budapest Hungary Tel: +36 1 476 6449, + 36 1 476 6459 Fax:+ 36 1 215 5293 E-mail: turim@oeti.antsz.hu

India/Inde

Mr Arun Kumar Shrivastav Deputy Assistant Director General (PFA) Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India Nirman Bhavan, Maulana Azad Road Delhi India Tel: 91-11-23063030 Fax:91-11-23061083 E-mail: dadgaks@nic.in

Indonesia/Indonésie

Dr Mohammad DANI Head,Centre of Permit and Investment Service Secretary of Pesticide Committee Gedung Arsip,Lantai 3 JL.Harsono RM No.3 ,Ragunan PS.Minggu Jakarta-Selatan 12550 Indonesia Tel: +62(21)78836171 Fax:+62(21)78839619 E-mail: mdani@cbn.net.id Dr Nyoman Oka TRIDJAJA Director (Directorate Quality and Standardization) Directorate General of Processing Marketing for Agric. Products Ministry of Agriculture, JL. Harsono RM No.3 Jakarta, 12550 Indonesia Tel: (62-21)7815881 Fax:(62-21)7811468 E-mail: ntridjaja@yahoo.com

Mr Azril BAHRI Head of Livestock and Estate Crop Directorate Quality and Standardization Ministry of Agriculture

Jakarta,12550 Indonesia Tel: 62-21-78842568 Fax:62-21-7811468 E-mail: ilham_azril@yahoo.co.id

Mr Mulyadi BENTENG Deputy Director for Agricultural Products Processing Ministry of Agriculture, JL.Harsono RM No.3 Jakarta Indonesia Tel: (021)78842572 Fax:(021)78842572

Mr Aslam HASAN Directorate Drink and Tobacco Industries Ministry of Industry JL.Gatorsubroto No.52-53 Jakarta, Indonesia Tel: (021)5252236 Fax:(021)5252236 E-mail: aslamhas@yahoo.com

Ms Yulia PURWANTI Centre of Permit and Investment Service/Secretariat of Pesticide Committee MOA,JL.HARSONORM, RAGUNAN Jakarta-Selatan,12550, Indonesia Tel: +6221 78836171 Fax:+6221 78839619 E-mail: yulia@deptan.go.id yulia_pungki@yahoo.com

Ms Rindayuni TRIAVINI Centre for Information and Biosafety Agency for Agricultural Quarantine Ministry of Agriculture, JL.Harsono RM NO.3,Ragunan Jakarta-Selatan 12550, Indonesia Tel: 6221 7821367 Fax:6221-7821367 E-mail: cagsps@indo.net.id rindayuni@dnet.net.id

Iran (Islamic Republic of) Iran (République islamique d') Irán (República Islámica del)

Dr Gholamhosein TAHMASBI Director General of Iranian Research Institute of Plant Protection P.O.Box 19395-1454 Tehran Iran Tel: 00982122401242 Fax:009822403691 E-mail: tahmasbi@ppdri.ac.ir hosein_tshmasli@hotmai.com

Iraq

Mr Fareed Saeed Mohammed Mohammed Head, Toxing Lab, Nutrition Research Institute Ministry of Health P.O Box 4010 Baghdad Iraq Phone:009647903392908 Fax:0096265510437 E-mail: farid_said1947@yahoo.com

Ireland/Irlande/Irlanda

Dr John ACTON Agriculture Inspector Pesticide Control Service Back Weston Campus Celbridge, County Kildare Ireland Tel: 00 353 1 615 7583 Fax: 00 353 1 615 7575 E-mail: john.acton@agriculture.gov.ie

Israel/Israël

Ms Rina ASHKENAZY Head, Chemistry Department, Plant Protection and Inspection Services Ministry of Agriculture P.O.B 78, Bet Dagan,50250 Israel Tel: +972-3-9681562 Fax:+972-3-9681582 E-mail: rinaa@moag.gov.il

Italy/Italie/Italia

Dr Ciro IMPAGNATIELLO Via XX Settembre 20 00187 Roma Italy Tel: +39-06-46656046 Fax:+39-06-4880273 E-mail: c.impagnatiello@politicheagricole.it

Japan/Japon/Japón

Dr Yukiko YAMADA Director Food Safety and Consumer Policy Division Food Safety and Consumer Affairs Bureau Ministry of Agriculture Forestry and Fisheries 1-2-1 Kasumigaseki,Chiyoda-ku,100-8950 Tokio, Japan Tel: +81-3-3591-4963 Fax:+81-3-3597-0329 E-mail: yukiko_yamada@nm.maff.go.jp

Mr Narihiko KAWAMURA

Deputy Director Standards and Evaluation Division Department of Food Safety Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku Tokio, Japan Tel: +81-3-3595-2341 Fax:+81-3-3501-4868 E-mail: kawamura-narihiko@mhlw.go.jp

Mr Masaki DABA Section Chief Standards and Evaluation Division Department of Food Safety Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare 1-2-2 Kasumigaseki Chiyodaku, Tokyo, Japan Tel: +81-3-3595-2341 Fax:+81-3-3501-4868 E-mail: daba-masaki@mhlw.go.jp

Mr Yoshinobu NOZAKA Section Chief Evaluation Division Food Safety Commission Secretariat, Cabinet office Prudential Tower 6F 2-13-10 Nagata-cho, Chiyoda-ku Tokio, Japan Tel: +81 3 5251 9146 Fax:+81 3 3591 2236 E-mail: yoshinobu.nozaka@cao.go.jp

Mr Yasuo KITAMURA Senior Review Manager, Environmental Fate and Behavior Inspection Division, Agricultural Chemicals Inspection Station (ACIS) Food and Agricultural Materials Inspection Center (FAMIC) 2-772 SUZUKI-CHO KODAIRA-SHI, TOKYO 187-0011 Tokyo Japan Tel: +81-42-383-2151 Fax:+81-42-385-3361 E-mail: yasuo_kitamura@acis.famic.go.jp

Kenya

Dr Rhonest NTAYIA Chief Chemist Kenya Plant Health Inspectorate Service P.O. Box 49592 00100 Nairobi Kenya Tel: +254 20 884545/882933 Fax:+254 20 882265 E-mail: director@kephis.org

Dr Henry Kibet ROTICH

Senior Laboratory Analyst 54974-00200 Nairobi Kenya Tel: +254-727-043763 Fax:+254-20 604031/609660 E-mail:rotich_1999@yahoo.com (direct) /info @kebs.org

Republic of Korea/République de Corée/República de Corea

Dr Moo-Ki HONG Director, Korea Food & Drug Administration 122-704 Seoul Republic of Korea Tel: 82-2-380-1673 Fax:82-2-380-1378 E-mail: mkhong@kfda.go.kr

Dr Moo-Hyeog IM Deputy Director Korea Food & Drug Administration 122-704 Seoul Republic of Korea Tel: 82-2-380-1674 Fax:82-2-380-1378 E-mail: imh0119@kfda.go.kr

Ms Seung-Yun JUNG Senior researcher Korea Food & Drug Administration 122-704 Seoul Republic of Korea Tel: 82-2-380-1347 Fax:82-2-385-2416 E-mail: jsy0511@kfda.go.kr Mr Myung Chul JANG Deputy Director Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry 427-719 Seoul Republic of Korea Tel: +82-2-500-1807 Fax:+82-2-507-2096 E-mail: jangmc@maf.go.kr

Mr Kyung Bong KOH Deputy Director Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry 427-719 Seoul Republic of Korea Tel: 82-2-500-1838 Fax:82-2-503-7277 E-mail: ko3201@maf.go.kr

Mr Hee Dong LEE Chemist NIAST, RDA, 150 Suinro, Suwon, Korea 441-707 Suwon Republic of Korea Tel: +82-31-290-0580 Fax:+82-31-290-0508 E-mail: yi901820@rda.go.kr

Dr Su-Myeong HONG Manager RDA, 150 Suinro, 441-707 Suwon Republic of Korea Tel: +82-31-299-2272 Fax: +82-31-293-9359 E-mail: wideyun@rda.go.kr

Dr Joong Keun LEE Head Researcher(Korea Health Industry Development Institute) 57-1 No ryang jin – Dong Dong jak – Ku Seoul Republic of Korea Tel: 82-2-2194-7488 Fax:82-2-824-1763 E-mail: leejk@khidi.or.kr

Mr Dong-Gyu KIM National Veterinary Research Quarantine Service 430-824 Anyang Republic of Korea Tel: 82-31-467-1984 Fax:82-31-467-1872 E-mail: kims@nvrqs.go.kr Prof Kee Sung KYUNG Assistant Professor Chungbuk National University 12 Gaeshing-dong, Heungduk-ku Cheongju 361-763 Republic of Korea Tel: +82-43-261-2562 Fax:+82-43-271-5921 E-mail: kskyung@chungbuk.ac.kr

Lesotho

Mr Esaiah TJELELE Senior Research Officer P.O. Box 829 Maseru. 100 Lesotho Tel: +266 58843373 (Mobile) Fax:+266 2231 0362 E-mail: etjelel@yahoo.co.uk

Ms Lucia PHAKISI Senior Economic Planner(Ministry of Agriculture) P.O.BOX 24 MASERU Maseru Lesotho Tel: (266)22326235 E-mail: phakisim@agric.gov.ls

Madagascar

Ms Beby RAHANTAMALALA Chef de Service Direction de la Qualité et de la Protection des Consommateurs BP 454 Antananarivo Madagascar Tel: 261 020 22 238 60 E-mail: dnq.sml@wanadoo.mg

Malawi

Mr Evasio Evans KAPEYA Registrar of Pesticides (Pesticides Control Board of Malawi) P.O. BOX 51300 Limbe Malawi Tel: 265 1 916 503 Fax:265 1 825 116 E-mail: pesticideboard@malawi.net

Malaysia/Malaisie/Malasia

Ms Nursiah MOHAMAD TAJOL AROS Director Department of Agriculture, Pesticide Control Division Jalan Gallagher 50480 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia Tel: +601239976 82 Fax:+603 2697 7225 E-mail: nursiah@doa.gov.my

Dr Ainie KUNTOM Senior Research Fellow Malaysian Palm Oil Board (MPOB) No. 6 Persiaran Institusi Bandar Baru Bangi 43000 Kajang, Selangor Malaysia Tel: +603 8769 4400 Fax:+603 8922 1742 E-mail: ainie@mpob.gov.my

Mr Chai Keong NGAN Research Officer Pesticide Laboratory Strategic Resource Research Centre MARDI Headquarters PO Box 12301 50774 Kuala Lumpur Malaysia Tel: +603 8943 7672 Fax:+603 8948 7639 E-mail: ckngan@mardi.my

Mr Chee Beng YEOH Research Officer Malaysian Palm Oil Board (MPOB) No. 6 Persiaran Institusi Bandar Baru Bangi 43000 Kajang, Selangor Malaysia Tel: +603 8769 4975 Fax:+603 8922 1742 E-mail: cbyeoh@mpob.gov.my

Mexico/Mexique/México

Mr Alberto ROSALES-CASTILLO Manager of Risk Priorization Monterrey 33, Col. Roma, Del. Cuauhtemoc, CP 06700 México Mexico Tel: 52 55 50 80 54 57 Fax:52 55 55 14 85 73 E-mail: arosale@salud.gob.mx

Morocco/Maroc/Marruecos

Mr Saad BENCHAKROUNE Directeur General Eacce,72 Rue Mohamed Smiha Casablanca Morocco Tel: +212 22 30 6198 Fax:+212 22 30 2567 E-mail: dg@eacce.org.ma

Mr Saad Cherqaoui Engineer in charge for the service of the recording of the pesticides B.P: 1308 Rabat Morocco Tel: 212 37 29 75 43 Fax:212 37 29 75 44 E-mail: cherqaouisbm@yahoo.fr

Mr Marraki EL KHADIR Conseiller Economique Embassy of the Kingdom of Morocco N-16 San Li Tun Lu Beijing,100600 Tel: (86-10)6532 1489 Fax:(86-10)6532 1453

Netherlands/Pays-Bas/Países Bajos

Dr Harrie STORMS Policy advisor Ministry of Health, Welfare and Sport (The Netherlands) P.O. Box 20350 The Hague Netherlands Tel: +31 703406225 E-mail: hf.storms@minvws.nl

Ms Monique MELLEMA P.O. Box 280, 2700 AG Zoetermeer Netherlands Tel: 0031 79 3470604 Fax:0031 79 3470600 E-mail: m.mellema@tuinbouw.nl

Ms Erica MULLER Plant Protection Service P.O. Box 9102 6700 HC Wageningen Netherlands Tel: +31 317 496881 Fax:+31 317 421701 E-mail: e.muller@minlnv.nl Dr Bernadette OSSENDORP Head Dept. Toxicology & Risk Assessment, RIVM/Centre for Substances and Integrated Risk PO Box 1 3720 BA Bilthoven Netherlands Tel: +31-30-274 3970 Fax:+31-30-274 4475 E-mail: bernadette.ossendorp@rivm.nl

Dr Henk VAN DER SCHEE Senior Surveillance Officer Hoogte Kadijk 401 1018BK Amsterdam Netherlands Tel: +31 20 5244702 Fax:+31 20 5244700 E-mail: henk.van.der.schee@vwa.nl

New Zealand/Nouvelle-Zélande/Nueva Zelandia

Ms Debbie MORRIS Director (Approvals and Agricultural Compounds and Veterinary Medicines) New Zealand Food Safety Authority 86 Jervois Quay PO Box 2835 Wellington New Zealand Tel: +64 4 894 2541 Fax:+64 4 894 2501 E-mail: debbie.morris@nzfsa.govt.nz

Mr Warren HUGHES Programme Manager (Approvals and ACVM Standards) New Zealand Food Safety Authority, P O Box 2835 Wellington New Zealand Tel: +64 4 894-2560 Fax:+64 4 894-2566 E-mail: warren.hughes@nzfsa.govt.nz

Ms Nikki JOHNSON PO Box 10629 Wellington New Zealand Tel: +64 4 4736040 Fax:+64 4 4736041 E-mail: Nikki@solutionz.co.nz

Mr David LUNN Programme Manager (Residues – Plants) NZ Food Safety Authority, PO Box 2835 Wellington New Zealand Tel: +64 4 894-2654 Fax:+64 4 894-2675 E-mail: Dave.Lunn@nzfsa.govt.nz Mr Bob MARTIN Market Access and Technical Manager ZESPRI International Ltd P O Box 4043 Mount Maunganui Tauranga 3116 New Zealand Tel: +64 7 572 7791 Fax:+64 7 572 7646 E-mail: bob.martin@zespri.com

Norway/Norvège/Noruega

Ms Ellen Mari GRANDE Senior adviser Norwegian Food Safety Authority Felles postmottak, P.O.Box 383 2381 Brumunddal Norway Tel: + 47 23 21 68 75 Fax:+ 47 23 21 65 10 E-mail: ellen.mari.grande@mattilsynet.no

Pakistan/ Pakistán

Mr Allah Rakha ASI Advisor & Director General (Department of Plant Protection) Jinnah Avenue, Malir Halt Karachi Pakistan Tel: +92-21-9248612-5 Fax:+92-21-9248673 E-mail: allah_rakha@hotmail.com

Romania/Roumanie

Dr Ivanescu MARINELA Deputy Director Institute of Hygiene and Veterinary Public Health Veterinary Public Health Campul Mosilor street, no.5, District 2 Bucharest (national reference laboratory) Romania Tel: 004 021 252 4651; Fax:004 021 252 0061 E-mail: malene_iva@yahoo.com; iispv@b.astral.ro

Singapore/Singapour/Singapur

Dr Paul CHIEW Deputy Director (Veterinary Public Health) Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore Veterinary Public Health Centre 10 Perahu Road Singapore 718837 Tel: (65) 6795 2826 Fax:(65) 6861 9491 E-mail: paul_chiew@ava.gov.sg Mr Poh Leong LIM Senior Scientist, Pesticide Residues Branch, Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore Veterinary public Health Centre 10 Perahu Road Singapore 718837 Tel: (65) 6795 2818 Fax:(65) 6861 9491 E-mail: lim_poh_leong@ava.gov.sg

South Africa/Afrique du Sud/Sudáfrica

Ms Neervana KHELAWANLALL Agricultural Management Advisor Private Bag X343 Pretoria 0001 SOUTH AFRICA Tel: +27-12 319 7301 Fax:+27-12 319 7179 E-mail: Neervanak@nda.agric.za

Ms Renusha CHANDA Assistant Director Department of Health Private Bag X828 Pretoria, 0001 South Africa Tel: +27-12 312 3161 Fax:+27-12 312 3162 E-mail: chandr@health.gov.za

Mr Willy Motlana MADIBA Chief Food Safety and Quality Control Officer Private Bag X 343 Pretoria,0001 South Africa Tel: +27-12 319 6051 Fax:+27-12 319 6265 E-mail: Madibaw@nda.agric.za

Spain/Espagne/España

Dr Santiago GUTIÉRREZ DEL ARROYO GARCÍA-ARENAL Jefe de Servicio de la Subdirección General de Gestión de Riesgos Alimentarios Agencia Espanola de Seguridad Alimetaria M DE Sanidad y Consumo Alcala,56 28071,Madrid Spain Tel: +34-91-338-0620 Fax:+34-91-338-0169 E-mail: sgutierrez@msc.es Ms Josefina LOMBARDERO VEGA Head Pesticides Residues Laboratory Ministery of Agriculture Jefe Servicio Laboratorio Arbitral Agroalimentario del Departemeto de Residuos del Laboratorio Arbitral Agroalimentario D.G.de Alimentacion Carretera N VI, Km 10.7 28023 Madrid Spain Tel: +34913474963-78 Fax:+34913474968 E-mail: josefina.lombardero@mapya.es

Sudan/Soudan/Sudán

Ms Nour MOHAMED EL HASSAN Sudanese Standard & Metrology Org 13573 Khartoum Sudan Tel: 00249913782943 Fax:002491774852 E-mail: nourssmo@hotmail.com

Mr Emad Eldin SHAREIF MOHAMED

Sudanese Standard and Metrology org 13573 Khartoum Sudan Tel:+249912682757 Fax:+2491774852 E-mail:omdassmo@yahoo.com

Sweden/Suède/Suecia

Mr Anders WANNBERG Senior Administrative Officer Ministry of Agriculture SE-103 33 STOCKHOLM Sweden Tel: +46 8 405 12 79 Fax:+46 20 64 96 E-mail:anders.wannberg@agriculture.ministry.se

Ms Ingegerd BERGMAN Principal Administrative Officer National Food Administration P.O.Box 622 SE - 751 26 Uppsala Sweden Tel: +46 18 17 56 11 Fax:+46 18 10 58 48 E-mail: ingegard.bergman@slv.se Mr Magnus CARNWALL Senior Administrative Officer National Food Administration P.O.Box 622 SE - 751 26 Uppsala Sweden Tel: +46 18 17 53 67 Fax:+46 18 10 58 48 E-mail: magnus.carnwall@slv.se

Switzerland/Suisse/Suiza

Dr Claude WÜTHRICH Swiss Federal Office of Public Health CH - 3003 Berne Switzerland Tel: +41 31 322 95 69 Fax:+41 31 322 95 74 E-mail: claude.wuethrich@bag.admin.ch

Dr Werner KOBEL Senior Regional Toxicology Advisor Swiss Society for Chemical Industry Syngenta Crop Protection AG, WRO 1004 3 24, Schwarzwaldallee 215 CH 4002 Basel Switzerland Tel: +41 61 323 62 39 Fax:+41 61 323 60 22 E-mail: werner.kobel@syngenta.com

United Republic of Tanzania République-Unie de Tanzanie República Unida de Tanzanía

Dr Bakari Salim Kiondo KAONEKA Principal Research Scientist P.O.BOX 3024 Arusha, Tanzania Tel: +255-27-2507544/76346 Fax:+255-27-2508217 E-mail: kaonekab@yahoo.com

Mr Mathias MISSANGA Standards Officer P.O.BOX 9524 DAR – ES -SALAAM Tanzania Tel: +255-22-2450206 Fax:+255-22-2450959 E-mail: obuzeva@yahoo.com

Ms Charys UGULLUM Director – Laboratory Services P.O.BOX 77150 DAR – ES -SALAAM Tanzania Tel: +255-22-2450512 Fax:+255-22-2450793 E-mail: Cha_ug@yahoo.com

Thailand/Thaïlande/Tailandia

Dr Supranee IMPITHUKSA Deputy Director General Department of Agriculture, Paholyothin Rd., Jatujak Bangkok Thailand Tel: (662) 940 5418 Fax:(662) 579 4855 E-mail: supranee@doa.go.th

Mr Pisan PONGSAPITCH

Senior Standards Officer National Bureau of Agricultural Commodity and Food Standards Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Rajadamnern Nok Avenue, 10200 Bangkok Thailand Tel: (662) 283 1600 ext 1181 Fax:(662) 280 3899 E-mail: pisanp@yahoo.com

Ms Raschanee SUVAPARP Department of Agriculture Ministry of Agriculture and Coopretatives Jatujak Bangkok Thailand Tel: 662 9405504 ext. 2213 Fax:662 5614695 E-mail: raschanee@gmail.com

Dr Nuansri TAYAPUTCH Laboratory Center for Food and Agricultural Products(LCFA) Phaholyothin RD, Kaset Klang Bangkhen Bangkok 10900 Thailand Tel: (662)9406881ext 202 Fax:(662)5794895 E-mail: nuantaya@hotmail.com

Mr Charoen KAOWSUKSAI Assistant Vice President (C.P.Retailing and Marketing Co.,Ltd.) 177 Moo4 Pathumthani-Lardlumkaew Rd. Rahaeng Phathumthani Thailand Tel: +662-976-3088 Fax:+662-976-2265 E-mail: charoen@cpram.co.th

United States of America/États-Unis d'Amérique/Estados Unidos de América

Ms Lois ROSSI Director, Registration Division, Office of Pesticide Programs, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue Washington, D.C. 20460 PY7505 USA Tel: 001-703-308-8162 Fax:001-703-305-6920 E-mail: rossi.lois@epa.gov

Ms Cynthia BAKER Director of Global Regulatory for Gowan Company 370 South Main Street Yuma, Arizona 85364 USA Tel: (928) 819-1554 Fax:(928) 373-1822 E-mail: cbaker@gowanco.com

Mr. Bill BRYANT Chairman BCI 1425 Fourth Ave Ste 808 Seattle, WA,98101 USA Tel: 206 292 6340 Fax:x6341 E-mail: billb@bryantchristie.com

Dr Julie CALLAHAN International Trade Specialist USDA Foreign Agricultural Service 1400 Independence Ave Washington, DC USA Tel: (202) 720-4341 Fax:(202) 690-0677 E-mail: julie.callahan@fas.usda.gov

Ms Julie CHAO Office of Pesticide Programs U.S. Environmental Agency Washington, D.C. Tel: 136-7123-7550 Fax: E-mail: chao_julie@yahoo.com

Dr Hong CHEN International Program Manager USDA IR-4 Headquarters 500 College Road East, 201W Princeton, NJ 08540 USA Tel: 001-732-932-9575 Fax:001-609-514-2612 E-mail: hchen@aesop.rutgers.edu Dr Robert EPSTEIN Deputy Administrator United States Department of Agriculture 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington DC 20250 United States Tel: 202 720-5231 Fax:202 720-6496 E-mail: Robert.Epstein@usda.gov Dr Hugh "Wally" EWART

President of the California Citrus Quality Council 210 Magnolia Avenue, Suite 3 Auburn, California 95603 USA Tel: (530) 885-1894 Fax:(530) 885-1546 E-mail: ccqc1946@pacbell.net & ccqc1314@pacbell.net

Dr Stephen FUNK Senior Science Advisor US EPA/OPP/HED, 1200 Pennsylvania Ave. NW – 7509P Washington, DC USA 20460 Tel: 1-703-305-5430 Fax:1-703-305-5147 E-mail: funk.steve@epa.gov

Ms Cecilia P GASTON Managing Scientist Exponent 1730 Rhode Island Avenue, NW Washington DC, 20036 USA Tel: +1 202 772 4903/ +1 703 912 4210 Fax:+1 202 772 4979/ +1 703 912 6530 E-mail: cgaston@exponent.com

Dr Jamin HUANG Product Registration Manager Bayer CropScience P.O. Box 12014, 2 T.W. Alexander Drive Research Triangle Park, North Carolina 27709 USA Tel: 919-549-2634 Fax:919-549-2545 E-mail: jamin.huang@bayercropscience.com

Ms Edith KENNARD Staff Officer U.S. Codex Office, USDA/FSIS 1400 Independence Ave, S.W Washington, D.C. 20250-3700 USA Tel: +1 202 720 5261 Fax:+1 202 720 3157 E-mail: edith.kennard@fsis.usda.gov Mr Matthew LANTZ Manager, Chemical and Technical Services, Bryant Christie Inc. 1425 4th Ave., Suite 808, WA 98101 Seattle USA Tel: 206-292-6340 Fax:206-292-6341 E-mail: matthewl@bryantchristie.com

Dr Gabriele LUDWIG Senior Manager, Global Technical & Regulatory Affairs Almond Board of California 1150 9th St, Suite 1500 Modesto, CA 95354 USA Tel: +209-765-0578 Fax:+209-549-8267 E-mail: gludwig@almondboard.com

Ms Kathy MONK Senior Regulatory Specialist Environmental Protection Agency One Potomac Yard 7505P 2777 S. Crystal Dr. Arlington, Virginia 22202 USA Tel: +1-703-308-8071 Fax:+1-703-305-9382 E-mail: monk.kathy@epa.gov

Mr Mark WIRTZ Interdisciplinary Scientist United States Food and Drug Administration 5100 Paint Branch Parkway Mail Code HSF-002 College Park, Maryland 20740 USA Tel: 1 301 436 2001 Fax:1 301 436 2641 E-mail: mark.wirtz@fda.hhs.gov FOOD AND AGRICULTURE ORGANIZATION OF THE UNITED NATIONS (FAO)

ORGANISATION DES NATIONS UNIES POUR L'ALIMENTATION ET L'AGRICULTURE

ORGANIZACIÓN DE LAS NACIONES UNIDAS PARA LA AGRICULTURA Y LA ALIMENTACIÓN

Dr Gero VAAGT Senior Officer, Plant Production and Protection Division, FAO Viale delle Terme di Caracalla Rome 00153 Italy Tel: +39 06 57055757; 348 0831999; +39 06 57054762 Fax:+39 06 57053224; +39 06 57056347 E-mail: Vaagt@fao.org

Ms Yong Zhen YANG Agricultural Officer and JMPR Secretary Viale delle Terme di Caracalla Rome 00153 Italy Tel: +39 06 57054246 Fax:+39 06 57053224 E-mail: YongZhen.Yang@fao.org

INTERNATIONAL ATOMIC ENERGY AGENCY (IAEA)

Dr Peter Josef BROOESSER Food Safety Specialist Wagramer Strasse 5 Vienna Austria Tel: +43-1-2600 26058 Fax:+43-1-26007 Email: j.brodesser@iaea.org

UNITED NATIONS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION (UNIDO)

Mr Sohrab JAVADI KHASRAGHI Member of Codex Committee on Pesticide Residues UNIDO National Project Coordinator UNIDO Project Office, 3rd Floor of GoloGiah Department, Building No.2 of Ministry of Jihad-e-Agriculture, Intersection Vali Asr Ave. & Taleghani St. Tehran Iran Phone:+9821 64583107 Fax:+9821 64583107 E-mail:javadi_sohrab@yahoo.com

WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION (WHO) ORGANISATION MONDIALE DE LA SANTE (OMS) ORGANIZACION MUNDIAL DE LA SALUD

Dr Angelika TRITSCHER WHO JMPR Secretary Avenue Appia 20 1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland Tel: +41 22 791 3569 Fax:+41 22 791 4848 E-mail: tritschera@who.int

Dr Seongsoo PARK Scientist Department of Food Safety, Zoonoses and Foodborne Diseases Avenue Appia 20 1211 Geneva 27 Switzerland Tel: +41 22 791 3364 Fax:+41 22 791 48 07 E-mail: parks@who.int

INTERNATIONAL NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

CROPLIFE INTERNATIONAL (CLI)

Dr Michael KAETHNER Developmental Affairs Bayer Crop Science Nobelstr. 50 40789 Monheim Germany Tel: 02173 387521 E-mail:michael.kaethner@bayercropscience.com Mr David OSBORN Chemtura Europe Limited Kennet House, 4 Langley Quay Slough, Berks SL36EH UK Tel: +44 (0)1753 603056 Fax:+44 (0)1753 603077 E-mail: E-mail: david.osborn@chemtura.com

Dr Philip BRINDLE Manager Global MRLs & Import Tolerances, BASF BASF Corporation, 26 Davis Drive Research Triangle Park, NC 27709 USA Tel: +1 919 547 2654 Fax: +1 919 547 2430 E-mail: philip.brindle@basf.com

Dr Jing DONG Dow AgroSciences Tel: +86 13910068486 Fax:+86 10 8518 1251 E-mail: Jdong@dow.com

Mr Yoshiyuki EGUCHI Manager, Regulatory Affairs Dept., Agro Products Div., Nippon Soda Co., Ltd. 2-1, Ohtemachi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-ku Tokyo,100-8165 JAPAN Tel: +81 3 3245 6042 Fax:+81 3 3245 6289 E-mail: y.eguchi@nippon-soda.co.jp

Ms Miki MATSUI Nihon Nohyaku Co. Ltd 345 Oyamada-cho,Kawachinagano Osaka Japan Tel: +81 721 56 9014 Fax:+81 721 56 9090 E-mail: matsui-miki@nichino.co.jp

Ms Mary Jean MEDINA REGIONAL REGULATORY AFFAIRS MANAGER-AP FMC CHEMICAL INTERNATIONAL AG 4/F 111 PASEO DE ROXAS BLDG., PASEO DE ROXAS ST. Makati Philippines Tel: +6328175546 TO 49 Fax:+6328181485 E-mail: jean_medina@fmc.com Dr Thalia PAPPAS-FADER Global Registration Manager Global Registration & Regulatory Affairs Stine-Haskell Research Center P.O.Box 30 Newark,DE 19714-0030 Landenberg, PA 19350 USA Tel: +1-302-366-6250 Fax:+1-302-351-7121 E-mail: thalia.pappas@usa.dupont.com

Mr Bill PICKERING Registration Manager 39 Landcroft Lane, Sutton Bonington Loughborough LE12 5RE UK Tel: +44 1509 670743 Fax: +44 1509 674938 E-mail: b-pickering@nihon-nohyaku.co.uk

Dr Emilia ROZINSKY Technical Manager, Regulatory Affairs Makhleshim-Agan Agan Office P.O. Box 262, Northern Industrial Zone, Ashlag str. Ashdod, 77102 Israel Tel: +972-8-8515350 Fax:+972-8-8522806 E-mail: emilia.r@agan.co.il

Mr Fumiaki SATO Manager, SDS Biotech K.K. 1-1-5, Higashi-Nihombashi, Chuo-ku Tokyo 103-0004 Japan Tel: +81 3 5825 5516 Fax:+81 3 5825 5501 E-mail: fumiaki_sato@sdk.co.jp

Ms Natalie SHEVCHUK Global Regulatory Manager FMC Corporation 1735 Market St Philadelphia, PA 19103 USA Tel: +1 215-299-6680 Fax:+1 215-299-6468 E-mail: Natalie.shevchuk@fmc.com

Mr Toshio SHIMOMURA National Federation of Agricultural Co-operative Association 1-8-3 Otemachi Chiyoda-ku Tokyo Japan Tel:+81-3-3245-7278 Fax:+81-3-3245-7244 E-mail: q0001114@zk.zennoh.or.jp Mr Michael SKIDMORE Head of Human Risk Assessment Europe Syngenta, Jealotts Hill International Research Station Bracknell, Berkshire. RG42 6EY UK Tel: +44 (0)1344 414338 Fax:+44 (0)1344 416687 E-mail: mike.skidmore@syngenta.com Dr Ying SONG

Research Manager Global Registration & Regulatory Affairs Stine-Haskell Research Center 1090 Elkton Rd, P.O. Box 30 Newark,DE 19714-0030 Hockessin, Delaware USA Tel: +1 302-451-4546 Fax:+1 302-351-7183 E-mail: ying.song-1@usa.dupont.com

Mr Yukiharu TANAKA Manager, Patent Information Office, Arysta LifeScience Corporation St. Luke's, 8-1, Akashi-cho, Chuo-ku Tokyo 104-6591 JAPAN Tel: +81 3 3547 4587 Fax:+81 3 3547 4695 yukiharu.tanaka@arystalifescience.com

Mr Miyakawa TOSHIKAZU General Manager Planning & Coordination Div. Japan Crop Protection Association 103-0022 5-8,1-chome Nihonbashi-Muromachi, Chuo-ku Tokyo Japan Tel:+81-3-3241-0230 Fax: +81-3-3241-3149 E-mail: miyakawa@jcpa.or.jp

Mr Hiroo WAKIMORI Chemical Regulatory Affairs Lead Monsanto Japan Ltd. 8th floor Ginza Sannou Bldg, 4-10-10, Ginza, Chuo-ku Tokyo Japan Tel: +81-3-6226-6080 Fax:+81-3-3546-6191 E-mail: hiroo.wakimori@monsanto.com

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE (ICA)

Mr Kazuo ONITAKE Head of Unit Safety Policy Service Japanese Consumers' Co-operative Union Co-op Plaza 3-29-8, Shibuya, Shibuya-ku Tokyo, 150-8913 Japan Tel: +81-3-5778-8109 Fax:+81-3-5778-8002 E-mail: kazuo.onitake@jccu.coop

INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF BEVERAGES ASSOCIATIONS (ICBA)

Ms Melissa ZIMMERLEE Technical Advisor 103-0022, 3-3-3 Nihonbashi-Muromachi Chuo-Ku Tokyo Japan Tel: +1 404 676 2496 Fax:+1 404 598 2496 E-mail: mzimmerlee@na.ko.com

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF PURE AND APPLIED CHEMISTRY (IUPAC)

Dr Kenneth RACKE Senior Scientist c/o Dow AgroSciences, 9330 Zionsville Road, Bldg 308-2E Indianapolis, IN 46268 USA Tel: +1 317 337 4654 Fax:+1 317 337 4649 E-mail: kracke@dow.com

Dr Caroline HARRIS Exponent International Ltd The Lenz, Hornbeam Business Park Harrogate HE2 8LE UK Tel: +44 1423 853201 Fax:+44 1423 810431 E-mail: charris@uk.exponent.com

Ms Sue-Sun Wong Consultant Agroformosa Technology Com.LTD 413 Taichung Hsien Taiwan, province of China Tel: 886-4-23315851 Fax:886-4-23312419 E-mail: suesunw.agrostd@msa.hinet.net

CCPR SECRETARIAT

Mr Jiming YE Deputy Director Institute for Control of the Agrochemicals Ministry of Agriculture (ICAMA) Room 315, No. 22, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: +86 10 6419 4081 Fax:+86 10 6502 5929 E-mail: yejiming@agri.gov.cn

Dr Yibing HE Room 904, No. 18, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: +86 10 6419 4253 Fax:+86 10 6419 4252 E-mail: ccpr@agri.gov.cn heyibing@agri.gov.cn

Mr Wencheng SONG Scientist Room 906, No. 18, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: +86 10 6419 4255 Fax:+86 10 6419 4252 E-mail: ccpr@agri.gov.cn

Ms Lifang DUAN Scientist Room 906, No. 18, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: +86 10 6419 4255 Fax:+86 10 6419 4252 E-mail: ccpr@agri.gov.cn

Mr Hongxin WANG Scientist Room 908, No. 18, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: +86 10 6419 4254 Fax:+86 10 6419 4252 E-mail: ccpr@agri.gov.cn Ms. Yuxiang ZHOU Scientist Room 906, No. 18, Maizidian Street, Chaoyang District Beijing 100026 P.R. China Tel: +86 10 6419 4257 Fax:+86 10 6419 4252 E-mail: ccpr@agri.gov.cn

Dr Hongjun ZHANG Senior Agronomist No. 22 Maizidia Street Chaoyang District, Beijing ,100026 P. R. China Tel: 86 10 6419 4095 Fax:86 10 6419 4110 E-mail: hongjun-zh1975@163.com

Ms Mengmeng QU Scientist No. 22 Maizidia Street Chaoyang District, Beijing ,100026 P. R. China Tel: 86 10 6419 4062 E-mail: qumengmeng@agri.gov.cn

Ms Junhua SONG Scientist No. 22 Maizidia Street Chaoyang District, Beijing ,100026 P. R. China Tel: 86 10 6419 4101 Fax:86 10 6507 1072 E-mail: happier51@yahoo.com.cn

Ms Susan BAKER Postbus 20350 2500 EJ DEN HAAG The Netherlands Tel: 0031 70 3405080 Fax:0031 70 3405554 E-mail: s.baker@minvws.nl

Mr Johan Willem DORNSEIFFEN Koppeldijk 26 1391 CZ Abcoude Netherlands Tel: +31-294-281222 E-mail: joop@dornseiffen.nl

Mr Peter Dirk Albert OLTHOF Ir. W.de Zwijgerlaan 22 3722 JR Bilthoven The Netherlands Tel: +31-(0)30-2287628 E-mail: pda.olthof@planet.nl Ms Karin Andrea SCHENKEVELD Hoflaan 7 22 42 EL Wassenaar The Netherlands Tel: +31 70 5177090 Fax:+31 70 5112281 E-mail: kaschenkeveld@hotmail.com

CODEX SECRETARIAT

Dr Jeronimas MASKELIUNAS Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 Rome Italy Tel: +39 06 5705 3967 Fax:+39 06 570 54593 E-mail: jeronimas.maskeliunas@fao.org

Dr Selma DOYRAN Senior Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 Rome Italy Tel: +39 06 5705 5826 Fax:+39 06 5705 4593 E-mail: selma.doyran@fao.org

Mr Masashi KUSUKAWA Food Standards Officer Joint FAO/WHO Food Standards Programme FAO Viale delle Terme di Caracalla 00153 Rome Italy Tel: +39 06 5705 4796 Fax:+39 06 5705 4593 E-mail: Masashi.Kusugawa@fao.org

APPENDIX II

DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES

(Recommended for adoption at Step 8)

Commodity	MRL	Source Step Note
94 Methomyl FP 0230 Pear	0.3	8
216 Indoxacarb	0.5	0
VL 0483 Lettuce, LeafFM 0183 Milk fatsML 0106 Milks	15 2 0.1	8 8 8

APPENDIX III

PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES

(Recommended for adoption at Step 5 and 8 with omission of Steps 6 and 7)

	Commodity	MRL	Step	Note
17	Chlorpyrifos			
FB	0265 Cranberry	1	5/8	
22	Diazinon			
FB	0265 Cranberry	0.2	5/8	
32	Endosulfan			
FI	0326 Avocado	0.5	5/8	
SB	0715 Cacao beans	0.2	5/8	
SB	0716 Coffee beans	0.2	5/8	
SO	0691 Cotton seed	0.3	5/8	
VC	0424 Cucumber	1	5/8	
FI	0322 Custard apple	0.5	5/8	
VO	0440 Egg plant	0.1	5/8	
PE	0112 Eggs	0.03	(*) 5/8	
TN	0666 Hazelnuts	0.02	(*) 5/8	
MO	0098 Kidney of cattle, goats, pigs & sheep	0.03	(*) 5/8	
FI	0343 Litchi	2	5/8	
MO	0099 Liver of cattle, goats, pigs & sheep	0.1	5/8	
TN	0669 Macadamia nuts	0.02	(*) 5/8	
FI	0345 Mango	0.5	5/8	
MM	0095 Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals)	0.2	(fat) 5/8	
VC	0046 Melons, except watermelon	2	5/8	
FM	0183 Milk fats	0.1	5/8	
ML	0106 Milks	0.01	5/8	
FI	0350 Papaya	0.5	5/8	
FI	0352 Persimmon	2	5/8	
VR	0589 Potato	0.05	(*) 5/8	
PM	0110 Poultry meat	0.03	(*) 5/8	
PO	0111 Poultry, Edible offal of	0.03	(*) 5/8	
VD	0541 Soya bean (dry)	1	5/8	
OC	0541 Soya bean oil, Crude	2	5/8	
VC	0431 Squash	0.5	5/8	
VR	0508 Sweet potato	0.05	(*) 5/8	
85 1	Fenamiphos			
VC	0046 Melons, except watermelon	0.05	5/8	
95	Acephate			
FB	0265 Cranberry	0.5	5/8	
101	Pirimicarb			
VS	0620 Artichoke, Globe	5	5/8	
VS	0621 Asparagus	0.01	(*) 5/8	
FB	0018 Berries and other small fruits	1	5/8	Exclu- grape
				U 1

Excludes strawberries and grapes

	Commodity	MRL		<u>Step</u>	Note
VB	0040 Brassica vegetables	0.5		5/8	
GC	0080 Cereal grains	0.05		5/8	Except rice
FC	0001 Citrus fruits	3		5/8	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
MO	0105 Edible offal (mammalian)	0.01	(*)	5/8	
PE	0112 Eggs	0.01	(*)	5/8	
VO	0050 Fruiting vegetables other than	0.5	. /	5/8	Excludes edible fungi and
	Cucurbits				sweet-corn-on-the-cob
VC	0045 Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	1		5/8	Excludes melons
VA	0381 Garlic	0.1		5/8	and water melons
VL	0480 Kale	0.1		5/8	
VP	0060 Legume vegetables	0.7		5/8	Excludes soya bean (dry)
VL	0482 Lettuce, Head	5		5/8	Excludes soyu bean (diy)
VL	0483 Lettuce, Leaf	5		5/8	
MM	0095 Meat (from mammals other than	0.01	(*)	5/8	
101101	marine mammals)	0.01	()	5/0	
VC	0046 Melons, except watermelon	0.2		5/8	
ML	0106 Milks	0.01	(*)	5/8	
VA	0385 Onion, Bulb	0.1		5/8	
AL	0072 Pea hay or pea fodder (dry)	60		5/8	
FP	0009 Pome fruits	1		5/8	
PM	0110 Poultry meat	0.01	(*)	5/8	
PO	0111 Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01	(*)	5/8	
VD	0070 Pulses	0.2		5/8	
SO	0495 Rape seed	0.05		5/8	
VR	0075 Root and tuber vegetables	0.05		5/8	
FS	0012 Stone fruits	3		5/8	
AS	0081 Straw and fodder (dry) of cereal	0.3		5/8	Excludes rice straw
	grains				and fodder (dry)
SO	0702 Sunflower seed	0.1		5/8	
VO	1275 Sweet corn (kernels)	0.05		5/8	
113 P	ropargite				
110 1					
VD	0071 Beans (dry)	0.3		5/8	
VD	0523 Broad bean (dry)	0.3		5/8	
VD	0524 Chick-pea (dry)	0.3		5/8	
VD	0545 Lupin (dry)	0.3		5/8	
VR	0589 Potato	0.03		5/8	
TN	0678 Walnuts	0.3		5/8	
148 P	ropamocarb				
				C (Net
	Commodity	MRL		<u>Step</u>	Note
VB	0404 Cauliflower	0.2		5/8	
MO	0105 Edible offal (mammalian)	0.01	(*)	5/8	
VO	0440 Egg plant	0.3		5/8	
PE	0112 Eggs	0.01	(*)	5/8	
VC	0045 Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	5		5/8	
VL	0482 Lettuce, Head	100		5/8	
VL	0483 Lettuce, Leaf	100		5/8	
MM	0095 Meat (from mammals other than	0.01	(*)	5/8	
	marine mammals)		(4)	- 10	
ML	0106 Milks	0.01	(*)	5/8	
VO	0445 Peppers, Sweet	3		5/8	
VR	0589 Potato	0.3	(*)	5/8	
PM	0110 Poultry meat	0.01	(*)	5/8	

ALINORM 07/30/24

	Commodity	<u>MRL</u>			<u>Step</u>	Note
DO	·		(*)			11000
PO VR	0111 Poultry, Edible offal of 0494 Radish	0.01 1	(*)		5/8 5/8	
VL	0502 Spinach	40			5/8 5/8	
VO	0448 Tomato	2			5/8	
VS	0469 Witloof chicory (sprouts)	2			5/8	
160	Propiconazole					
FB	0265 Cranberry	0.3			5/8	
185	Fenpropathrin					
DT	1114 Tea, Green, Black	2			5/8	
206	Imidacloprid					
ED		0.05	(*)		5 /0	
FB	0265 Cranberry	0.05	(*)		5/8	
209	Methoxyfenozide					
FB	0265 Cranberry	0.7			5/8	
210	Pyraclostrobin					
	•	0.5			5 /0	
FP VB	0226 Apple 0402 Brussels sprouts	0.5 0.3			5/8 5/8	
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	0.3			5/8 5/8	
VC	4199 Cantaloupe	0.2			5/8	
SB	0716 Coffee beans	0.2			5/8	
VC	0424 Cucumber	0.5			5/8	
VO		0.3			5/8	
VB	0042 Flowerhead brassicas	0.1			5/8	
DH		15			5/8	
VL	1	15			5/8	
VA		0.7			5/8	
VL	0482 Lettuce, Head	2			5/8	
VP	0063 Peas (pods and		(*)		5/8	
• 1	succulent=immature seeds)	0.02	()		0/0	
VO		0.5			5/8	
FB	0272 Raspberries, Red, Black	2			5/8	
	-					
VD	5 (5 /	0.05			5/8	
GC		0.2			5/8	
FS	0012 Stone fruits	1			5/8	
SO	0702 Sunflower seed	0.3			5/8	
211	Fludioxonil					
AB	0226 Apple pomace, Dry	20			5/8	
FP	0009 Pome fruits	5		Ро	5/8	
219	Bifenazate					
AM	0660 Almond hulls	10			5/8	
SO	0691 Cotton seed	0.3			5/8	
DF	0269 Dried grapes (=currants, raisins	2			5/8	
	and sultanas)	_				
MO		0.01	(*)		5/8	
PE	0112 Eggs	0.01	(*)		5/8	
VC		0.5	. /		5/8	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				-	

	(<u>Commodity</u>	MRL			<u>Step</u>	Note
ED						-	
FB DH		Grapes Hops, Dry	0.7 20			5/8 5/8	
DII	1100	nops, Dry	20			5/8	
FM	0183	Milk fats	0.05			5/8	
ML		Milks	0.01	(*)		5/8	
HH		Mint top	40			5/8	
VO		Peppers, Chili	3			5/8	
VO		Peppers, Sweet	2			5/8	
FP		Pome fruits	0.7	(*)	(C ()	5/8	
PM PO		Poultry meat	0.01	(*)	(fat)	5/8 5/8	
FS		Poultry, Edible offal of Stone fruits	0.01 2	(*)		5/8	
FB		Strawberry	$\frac{2}{2}$			5/8	
VO		Tomato	0.5^{2}			5/8	
TN		Tree nuts	0.2			5/8	
	0000		0.2			0,0	
221 B	oscalio	1					
AM	0660	Almond hulls	15			5/8	
FP	0226	Apple	2			5/8	
FI		Banana	0.2			5/8	
FB		Berries and other small fruits	10			5/8	
SB		Coffee beans	0.05	(*)		5/8	
DF	0269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas)	10			5/8	
FB	0269	Grapes	5			5/8	
TN	0675	Pistachio nuts	1			5/8	
FS		Stone fruits	3			5/8	
TN	0085	Tree nuts	0.05	(*)		5/8	
222 Q	uinox	yfen					
GC	0640	Barley	0.01	(*)		5/8	
FS		Cherries	0.4	()		5/8	
FB		Currant, Black	1			5/8	
MO		Edible offal (mammalian)	0.01	(*)		5/8	
PE		Eggs	0.01	(*)		5/8	
FB		Grapes	2 1			5/8 5/8	
DH VL		Hops, Dry Lettuce, Head	8			5/8	
VL VL		Lettuce, Leaf	8 20			5/8	
VL VC		Melons, except watermelon	0.1			5/8	
FM		Milk fats	0.2			5/8	
ML		Milks	0.01			5/8	
VO		Peppers	1			5/8	
VO		Peppers, Chili	10			5/8	
PM		Poultry meat	0.02		(fat)	5/8	
PO	0111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01			5/8	
FB	0275	Strawberry	1			5/8	
VR		Sugar beet	0.03			5/8	
GC	0654	Wheat	0.01	(*)		5/8	
223 T	hiaclo	prid					
AM	0660	Almond hulls	10			5/8	
FB		Berries and other small fruits	1			5/8	
SO		Cotton seed	0.02	(*)		5/8	
VC		Cucumber	0.3	. /		5/8	
MO		Edible offal (mammalian)	0.5			5/8	

	<u>Commodity</u>	<u>MRL</u>	<u>Step Note</u>
VO	0440 Egg plant	0.7	5/8
PE	0112 Eggs	0.02 (*)	5/8
FI	0341 Kiwi	0.2	5/8
MM	0095 Meat (from mammals other than	0.1	5/8
	marine mammals)		
VC	0046 Melons, except watermelon	0.2	5/8
ML	0106 Milks	0.05	5/8
SO	0485 Mustard seed	0.5	5/8
VO	0445 Peppers, Sweet	1	5/8
FP	0009 Pome fruits	0.7	5/8
VR	0589 Potato	0.02 (*)	5/8
PM	0110 Poultry meat	0.02 (*)	5/8
PO	0111 Poultry, Edible offal of	0.02 (*)	5/8
SO	0495 Rape seed	0.5	5/8
GC	0649 Rice	0.02 (*)	5/8
FS	0012 Stone fruits	0.5	5/8
VO	0448 Tomato	0.5	5/8
TN	0085 Tree nuts	0.02	5/8
VC	0432 Watermelon	0.2	5/8
GC	0654 Wheat	0.1	5/8
AS	0654 Wheat straw and fodder, Dry	5	5/8

APPENDIX IV

PROPOSED DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES

(Recommended for adoption at Step 5)

		<u>Commodity</u>	<u>MRL (n</u>	<u>ng/kg)</u>	<u>Step</u>	Note
32 En	dosul	fan				
VB VS FS VO	0624 0013) Broccoli 4 Celery 3 Cherries 3 Tomato	3 7 2 1		5 5 5 5	
65 Th FC		dazole	5	Ро	5	
	fenaza					
	0095 iinoxy	Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals fen	0.05	(fat)	5	
MM	-	5 Meat (from mammals other than marine mammals)	0.02	(fat)	5	

APPENDIX V

CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES RECOMMENDED FOR REVOCATION

	<u>Commodity</u>	MRL		<u>Step</u>
27	Dimethoate			
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	2		CXL-D
32	Endosulfan			
VP	0522 Broad bean (green pods and immature seeds)	0.5		CXL-D
VB	0403 Cabbage, Savoy	2		CXL-D
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	1		CXL-D
VR	0577 Carrot	0.2		CXL-D
VB	0404 Cauliflower	0.5		CXL-D
VP	0526 Common bean (pods and/or immature seeds)	0.5		CXL-D
OC	0691 Cotton seed oil, Crude	0.5		CXL-D
VP	0528 Garden pea (young pods)	0.5		CXL-D
FB	0269 Grapes	1		CXL-D
VL	0480 Kale	1		CXL-D
VL VL	0482 Lettuce, Head	1		CXL-D CXL-D
GC	0483 Lettuce, Leaf 0645 Maize	0.1		CXL-D CXL-D
VA	0385 Onion, Bulb	0.1		CXL-D CXL-D
FC	0004 Oranges, Sweet, Sour	0.2		CXL-D CXL-D
FS	0247 Peach	0.5		CXL-D CXL-D
FI	0353 Pineapple	2	Ро	CXL-D
FS	0014 Plums (including prunes)	1	10	CXL-D
FP	0009 Pome fruits	1		CXL-D
SO	0495 Rape seed	0.5		CXL-D
GC	0649 Rice	0.1		CXL-D
VL	0502 Spinach	2		CXL-D
VR	0596 Sugar beet	0.1		CXL-D
SO	0702 Sunflower seed	1		CXL-D
GC	0654 Wheat	0.2		CXL-D
40	Fentin			
DH	1100 Hops, Dry	0.5		CXL-D
VR	0589 Potato	0.1		CXL-D
GC	0649 Rice	0.1	(*)	CXL-D
VR	0596 Sugar beet	0.2		CXL-D
85	Fenamiphos			
VO	0448 Tomato	0.2		CXL-D
94	Methomyl			
FP	0009 Pome fruits	2		CXL-D
100	Methamidophos			
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	0.5		CXL-D
VC	0424 Cucumber	1		CXL-D

	Commodity	<u>MRL</u>	<u>Step</u>
101	Pirimicarb		
AL GC	1020 Alfalfa fodder 0640 Barley	20 0.05 (*)	CXL-D CXL-D
VP	0062 Beans, Shelled	0.05 (*) 0.1	CXL-D CXL-D
VR	0574 Beetroot	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VB	0400 Broccoli	1	CXL-D
VB	0402 Brussels sprouts	1	CXL-D
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	1	CXL-D
VB	0404 Cauliflower	1	CXL-D
VS	0624 Celery	1	CXL-D
FC	0001 Citrus fruits	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VP	0526 Common bean (pods and/or immature seeds)	1	CXL-D
SO	0691 Cotton seed	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VC FB	0424 Cucumber 0278 Current Block	1 0.5	CXL-D
гь VO	0278 Currant, Black 0440 Egg plant	0.5	CXL-D CXL-D
VU VL	0476 Endive	1	CXL-D CXL-D
VC	0425 Gherkin	1	CXL-D CXL-D
VB	0405 Kohlrabi	0.5	CXL-D
VA	0384 Leek	0.5	CXL-D
VL	0482 Lettuce, Head	1	CXL-D
ML	0106 Milks	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
GC	0647 Oats	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VA	0385 Onion, Bulb	0.5	CXL-D
FC	0004 Oranges, Sweet, Sour	0.5	CXL-D
HH	0740 Parsley	1	CXL-D
VR	0588 Parsnip	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
FS VP	0247 Peach 0063 Peas (pods and	0.5 0.2	CXL-D CXL-D
	succulent=immature seeds)		
TN	0672 Pecan	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VO VO	0444 Peppers, Chili 0445 Peppers, Sweet	2 1	CXL-D
FS	0445 Peppers, Sweet 0014 Plums (including prunes)	0.5	CXL-D CXL-D
VR	0589 Potato	0.05 (*)	CXL-D CXL-D
VR	0494 Radish	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
FB	0272 Raspberries, Red, Black	0.5	CXL-D
VL	0502 Spinach	1	CXL-D
FB	0275 Strawberry	0.5	CXL-D
VR	0596 Sugar beet	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VO	0447 Sweet corn (corn-on-the-cob)	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VO	0448 Tomato	1	CXL-D
VR	0506 Turnip, Garden	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
VL	0473 Watercress	1	CXL-D
GC	0654 Wheat	0.05 (*)	CXL-D
	Propargite		
FS	0240 Apricot	7	CXL-D
FS	0245 Nectarine	7	CXL-D
FS	0247 Peach	7	CXL-D

FP

FS FB

VR

VR

VB

VB VS

VC

FB

FS

FS FS

FP

SO

117 Aldicarb

148 Propamocarb

210 Pyraclostrobin

4723 Soya bean (dry), see Group 07:

RM 07	RM 07/30/24				
<u>C</u>	<u>commodity</u>	MRL	<u>Step</u>		
0230	Pear	5	CXL-D		
0014	Plums (including prunes)	7	CXL-D		
0275	Strawberry	7	CXL-D		
ldicar	b				
0589	Potato	0.5	CXL-D		
ropam	ocarb				
0574	Beetroot	0.2	CXL-D		
0402	Brussels sprouts	1	CXL-D		
0041	Cabbages, Head	0.1	CXL-D		
0624	Celery	0.2	CXL-D		
0424	Cucumber	2	CXL-D		
0275	Strawberry	0.1	CXL-D		
yraclo	strobin				
0013	Cherries	1	CXL-D		
0247	Peach	0.5	CXL-D		
0014	Plums (including prunes)	0.3	CXL-D		
ludiox	onil				
0230	Pear	0.7	CXL-D		

0.01

CXL-D

SO	0702	Sur
219	Bifenaz	ate
AB	1230	Ap

211 Fludioxonil

		Pulses			
SC	0702	Sunflower seed	0.01		CXL-D
19	Bifenaz	zate			
AI	3 1230	Apple pomace, wet	2		CXL-D
SC	0691	Cotton seed	1		CXL-D
V	C 0424	Cucumber	0.5		CXL-D
DI	F 0269	Dried grapes (=currants, raisins and sultanas)	s 2		CXL-D
Μ	O 0105	Edible offal (mammalian)	0.01		CXL-D
V	D 0440	Egg plant	2		CXL-D
PE	0112	Eggs	0.01		CXL-D
FE	B 0269	Grapes	1		CXL-D
DI	H 1100	Hops, Dry	15		CXL-D
M	M 0095	Meat (from mammals other tha marine mammals)	n 0.1	(fat)	CXL-D
V	C 0046	Melons, except watermelon	0.3		CXL-D
M		Milks	0.01		CXL-D
HI	H 0738	Mint top	25		CXL-D
FS		Nectarine	2		CXL-D
V	0442	Okra	2		CXL-D
FS	0247	Peach	2 2		CXL-D
V	0051	Peppers	2		CXL-D
V		Peppers, Chili	2		CXL-D
FS	0014	Plums (including prunes)	0.3		CXL-D
FF	0009	Pome fruits	1		CXL-D
PN		Poultry meat	0.01		CXL-D
PC) 0111	Poultry, Edible offal of	0.01		CXL-D
V	0431	Squash	0.7		CXL-D
FE	B 0275	Strawberry	2		CXL-D
D	Г 1114	Tea, Green, Black	2		CXL-D
V	D 0448	Tomato	1		CXL-D
TN	N 0085	Tree nuts	0.2		CXL-D
V	0432	Watermelon	0.3		CXL-D

APPENDIX VI

PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES

(Retained to at Steps 7 and 4 respectively)

CommodityMRL (mg/kg)SourceStepMRLs returned to Step7					
27 D	imethoate				
VL VO	0482 Lettuce, Head 0445 Peppers, Sweet	3 5	Ро	7 7	
72 C	arbendazim				
FS FB VL FI FC	0013 Cherries0269 Grapes0482 Lettuce, Head0345 Mango0004 Oranges, Sweet, Sour	10 3 5 5 1	Th b, Th Th C B	7 7 7 7 7	
90 C	hlorpyrifos-Methyl				
GC GC GC	0640 Barley 0647 Oats 0649 Rice	10 10 10	Po Po Po	7 7 7	
94 M	lethomyl				
VB	0040 Brassica vegetables	7		7	
VS	0624 Celery	3		7	
VC	0045 Fruiting vegetables, Cucurbits	0.1		7	
FB	0269 Grapes	7		7	
VL	0053 Leafy vegetables	30		7	
95 A	cephate				
VB	0042 Flowerhead brassicas	2		7	
FC	0003 Mandarins	7		7	
96 C	arbofuran				
VC	4199 Cantaloupe	0.2		7	
VC FC	0424 Cucumber 0206 Mandarin	0.3 0.5		7 7	
FC	0004 Oranges, Sweet, Sour	0.5		7	
VR	0589 Potato	0.2		7	
VC	0431 Squash	0.3		7	
VO	0447 Sweet corn (corn-on-the-cob)	0.1		7	
100 M	Iethamidophos				
VB	0042 Flowerhead brassicas	0.5	Ac	7	
FC	0003 Mandarins	0.5	Ac	7	
112 P	horate				
VR	0589 Potato	0.5		7	
126 0	xamyl				
FC	0001 Citrus fruits	3		7	
VC	0424 Cucumber	1		7	
VC VO	0046 Melons, except watermelon	1 5		7 7	
VO	0051 Peppers	3		/	

Com	Commodity MRL (mg/kg) Source Step Note				
142 P	rochloraz			_	
VO	0450 Mushrooms	40		7	
145 C	arbosulfan				
FC	0206 Mandarin	0.1		7	
FC	0004 Oranges, Sweet, Sour	0.1		7	
VR	0589 Potato	0.05		7	
194 H	aloxyfop				
PE	0840 Chicken eggs	0.01	(*)	7	
PM	0840 Chicken meat	0.01	(*)	7	
PO	0840 Chicken, Edible offal of	0.05		7	
SO	0691 Cotton seed	0.2		7	
OC	0691 Cotton seed oil, Crude	0.5		7	
AM	1051 Fodder beet	0.3		7	
SO	0697 Peanut	0.05		7	
VP	0063 Peas (pods and	0.2		7	
	succulent=immature seeds)				
VR	0589 Potato	0.1		7	
VD	0070 Pulses	0.2		7	
SO	0495 Rape seed	2		7	
OC	0495 Rape seed oil, Crude	5		7	
OR	0495 Rapeseed oil, Edible	5		7	
CM	· 1	0.02	(*)	7	
CM	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0.02	(*)	7	
CM		0.02	(*)	7	
OC	.	0.2		7	
OR	5	0.2		7	
VR	0596 Sugar beet	0.3		7	
SO	0702 Sunflower seed	0.2		7	
MRLs retained at Step 4					
194 H	aloxyfop				
MO	1280 Cattle kidney	1		4	

MO	1280 Cattle kidney	1	4
MO	1281 Cattle liver	0.5	4
MM	0812 Cattle meat	0.05	4
ML	0812 Cattle milk	0.3	4

APPENDIX VII

PROPOSED DRAFT AND DRAFT MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES

(Returned to Step 6)

		Commodity	MRL (mg	<u>/kg)</u> Sour	rce <u>Step</u>	Note
7	С	aptan				
	FS	0013 Cherries	25		6	
	DF	0269 Dried grapes (=curran and sultanas)			6	
	FB	0269 Grapes	25		6	
	VC	0046 Melons, except waterr			6	
	FS	0247 Peach	20		6	
	FS FP	0014 Plums (including prun 0009 Pome fruits	les) 10 15	Ро	6 6	
	FB	0009 Fome fruits 0275 Strawberry	15	FO	0 6	
	VO	0448 Tomato	5		6	
8		arbaryl				
U	FS	0013 Cherries	20		6	
	гз FC	0013 Citrus fruits	20 15		6 6	
	JF	0001 Citrus juice	0.5		6	
	AB	0001 Citrus pulp, Dry	4		6	
	DF	0269 Dried grapes (=curran and sultanas)	ts, raisins 50		6	
	JF	0269 Grape juice	30		6	
	AB	0269 Grape pomace, Dry	80		6	
	FB	0269 Grapes	40		6	
	FS	0012 Stone fruits	10		6	Except cherries.
37	F	enitrothion				
	FP	0226 Apple	0.5		6	
	GC	0080 Cereal grains	10	Ро	6	Also cover pre-harvest use of fenitrothion.
	MO	0105 Edible offal (mammal	ian) 0.05	(*)	6	
	PE	0112 Eggs	0.05	(*)	6	
	MM	marine mammals)	other than 0.05	(*)	6	
	ML	0106 Milks	0.01	(4)	6	
	PM	0110 Poultry meat	0.05	(*)	6	
	CM CM	1206 Rice bran, Unprocesse 0654 Wheat bran, Unprocess		PoP PoP	6 6	
40		-	sed 50	101	0	
49		lalathion	200		6	
	AL	1020 Alfalfa fodder	200 150		6	
	AL AS	1031 Clover hay or fodder 0162 Hay or fodder (dry) of			6 6	
	AS	0645 Maize fodder (dry)	500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500		6	
	AS	0654 Wheat straw and fodd			6	
95		cephate	-			
-	FS	0245 Nectarine	2		6	
	FS	0247 Peach	2		6	
	VO	0051 Peppers	5		6	
	FP	0009 Pome fruits	7		6	
10	0 M	lethamidophos				
	FS	0245 Nectarine	0.5	A	Ac 6	
	FS	0247 Peach	0.5	I	Ac 6	

	Commodity	MRL (mg/kg)	Source Step Note
VO	0051 Peppers	2	Ac 6
FP	0009 Pome fruits	0.5	Ac 6
103 P	hosmet		
FS	0240 Apricot	10	6
FB	0020 Blueberries	15	6
FC	0001 Citrus fruits	3	6
FS	0245 Nectarine	10	6
FP	0009 Pome fruits	10	6
166 O	xydemeton-Methyl		
FP	0226 Apple	0.05	6
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	0.05 (*)	6
FB	0269 Grapes	0.1	6
FC	0004 Oranges, Sweet, Sour	0.2	6
193 F	enpyroximate		
FP	0226 Apple	0.3	6
FB	0269 Grapes	1	6
204 E	sfenvalerate		
SO	0691 Cotton seed	0.05	6
VO	0448 Tomato	0.05	6
GC	0654 Wheat	0.05	6
212 N	fetalaxyl-M		
FP	0226 Apple	0.02 (*)	6
SB	0715 Cacao beans	0.02 (*)	6
FB	0269 Grapes	1	6
VL	0482 Lettuce, Head	0.5	6
VA	0385 Onion, Bulb	0.03	6
VO	0445 Peppers, Sweet	0.5	6
VR	0589 Potato	0.02 (*)	6
VL	0502 Spinach	0.1	6
SO	0702 Sunflower seed	0.02 (*)	6
VO	0448 Tomato	0.2	6
216 In	ndoxacarb		
VB	0041 Cabbages, Head	3	6
MRLs	FOR SPICES		
53	Mevinphos		
	Spices, grains	5	6
	Spices, fruits and berries	0.2	*) 6
	Spices, roots and rhizomes	1	6
	spices, roots and mizomes	1	U

APPENDIX VIII

PRIORITY LIST OF CHEMICALS SCHEDULED FOR EVALUATION AND RE-EVALUATION BY JMPR

The following are the tentative schedules to be evaluated by the FAO/WHO Joint Meeting on Pesticides Residues from 2007 to 2012.

Toxicological evaluations		Residues evaluations	
New Compounds		New Compounds	
difenoconazole		difenoconazole	
dimethomorph		dimethomorph	
pyrimethanil		pyrimethanil	
zoxamide		zoxamide	
Periodic re-evaluations		Periodic re-evaluations	
azinphos-methyl (002)	2008R	clofentezine (156)	2005T
lambda cyhalothrin	2008R	cyfluthrin/beta cyfluthrin (157)	2006T
		cyromazine (169)	2006T
flusilazole (165)		flusilazole (165)	
procymidone (136)	2009R	propiconazole (160)	2004T
profenofos (171)	2008R	triadimefon(133)/ triadimenol (168)	2004T
		triazophos (143)	2002T
Evaluations		Evaluations	
aminopyralid (220) -		aminopyralid (220)	
finalisation of evaluation		finalisation of evaluation	
pending complete data		pending complete data	
submission		submission	

atrazine - toxicity evaluation for water drinking guidelines - requested by WHOcarbaryl (008) - refrospective alternative GAP, cherries, citrus pulp, dry; dried grapes and stone fruits; and additional MRLs for cranberry and chili pepers.2001T, 2002Rcaptan (007) - review of ARfDImage: Second Seco			
drinking guidelines - requested by WHOGAP, cherries, citrus fruits, citrus juice, citrus pulp, dry: dried grapes and stone fruits; and additional MRLs for cranberry and chili peppers.captan (007) -review of ARDFenitrothion (037) -apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalias); eggs; meat (from mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; wheat bran unprocess	•	• • • •	2001T, 2002R
requested by WHOfruits, citrus juice, citrus pulp, dry; dried grapes and stone fruits; and additional MRLs for cranberry and chili peppers.captan (007) -review of ARIDfenitrothion (037) -apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) - EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit, nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDthese sectors additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabade, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermeloon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenyroxymate (193) - review of the ARIDMRLs for diricd chili pepper -zinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl (138), methowyl (094), methowyl (094), methowyl (094), methowyl (085), diazinon (022) imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl (138), methowyl (081, methowyl (084), methowyl (084), methowyl (084), methowyl (084) for alternative GAP forJenetaries GaPs for alternative GAP for		-	
Pulp, dry: and stone fruits; and additional MRLs for cranberry and chili peppers.captan (007) -review of ARTDfenitrothion (037) -apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals) ther than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) - EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, noino, garite, head cabage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffce, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARIDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl (138), methoxyl (084), nethoxyl (084), methoxyl (084), methoxyl (087)MELs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl (138), methoxyl (084), methoxyl (084), methoxyl (084), methoxyl (084), methoxyl (084) for			
and stone fruits; and additional MRLs for cranberry and chili peppers.captan (007) -review of ARfDFenitrothion (037) – apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammaliar); eggs; meat (from mammals) milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; wheat bran outry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; wheat bran unproce	requested by WHO	fruits, citrus juice, citrus	
additional MRLs for cranberry and chili peppers.captan (007) -review of ARIDfenitrothion (037) -apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) - EU will submit written concern to the JMPR ScoretariatPhosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricor, blueberries, citrus fruit, nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onin, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tormato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfentpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), methoxyl (290) and carbaryl (8)Imode and the provide alternative GAP forfolpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP forImode alternative GAP for		pulp, dry; dried grapes	
captan (007) - review of ARDcranberry and chili peppers.captan (007) - review of ARDfenitrothion (037) - apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) - EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leck, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melao, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfentpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazion (022), imidacloprid (206), metaaxyl (138), methomyl (094), methoxyl (904), methoxyl (904), methoxyl (904), methoxyl (904), methoxyl (905) diazinon (022) imidacloprid torol (206) metaaxyl (138), methomyl (094),		and stone fruits; and	
Image: content of the series		additional MRLs for	
Image: content of the series		cranberry and chili	
captan (007) -review of ARIDfenitrothion (037) -apple; cereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) - EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leck, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.MRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methoxylenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARID.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
ARIDcereal grains; edible offal (mammalian); eggs; meat (from mammals) the than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) – EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) – retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDtebuconazole (189)– additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) – review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methonyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: sprouts image:	(005)		
(mammalian): eggs; meat (from mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed; w	-		
(from mammals other than marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) – EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) –retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)– additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.MRLs for dired chilli pepper -aziphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Jester (041) – review of the ARfD.	AKID	_	
marine mammals); milks; poultry meat; rice bran, unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.carbendazim (072) – EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) –retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)– additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) – review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Imit and the formation in the formation (210-for alternative GAP forImit and the formation in the formation (210-for alternative GAP for			
carbendazim (072) – EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARIDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfentpyroxymate (193) – review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methonyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: spread sp		`	
unprocessed; wheat bran unprocessed.unprocessed.carbendazim (072) – EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) –retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderbery, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.MRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxylenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: the state of the term of the ARfD.folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP forImage: term of term of the ARfD		marine mammals); milks;	
carbendazim (072) - EUphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, borccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), inidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: sprouts in the sprout of the ARfDfolpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP forImage: sprout indox		poultry meat; rice bran,	
carbendazim (072) - EU will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariatphosmet (103) -retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, borcocli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.MRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		unprocessed; wheat bran	
will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariat-retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidaeloprid (206), metaaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxylenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: Spread alternative GAP for		unprocessed.	
will submit written concern to the JMPR Secretariat-retrospective alternative GAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidaeloprid (206), metaaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxylenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: Spread alternative GAP for	carbendazim (072) – EU	phosmet (103)	
to the JMPR SecretariatGAPs for apricot, blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: Comparison of the Carbarge of the ARfDfolpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP forImage: Comparison of the Carbarge of the Carba		-	
blueberries, citrus fruit , nectarine and pome fruit.1994Tfenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: Spread (2000) and carbaryl (2000) and carbaryl (2000) and carbaryl (2000) and carbaryl (2000) and carbaryl (8)		_	
Image: constraint of the series of the ser		_	
fenitrothion (037) -review of ADI and ARfDtebuconazole (189)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.1994Tfenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)Image: Comparison of the carbarge of			
of ADI and ARfDadditional MRLs for citrus fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
folget (041) - review of the ARfD.fruit, pome fruit, plum, elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for	fenitrothion (037) -review	tebuconazole (189)-	1994T
elderberry, mango, papaya, leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) – review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for	of ADI and ARfD	additional MRLs for citrus	
leek, onion, garlic, head cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		fruit, pome fruit, plum,	
cabbage, brussels sprouts, broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		elderberry, mango, papaya,	
broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		leek, onion, garlic, head	
broccoli, melon, watermelon, tomato, lettuce, bean, soya, carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		cabbage, brussels sprouts,	
fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
carrot, artichoke, celery, barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
barley, rice, maize, rape, coffee, hops.fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		•	
fenpyroxymate (193) - review of the ARfDMRLs for dried chilli pepper -azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
review of the ARfD-azinphos-methyl (068), diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		contee, nops.	
diazinon (022), imidacloprid (206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8) folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.		MRLs for dried chilli pepper	
(206), metalaxyl(138), methomyl (094), methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for	review of the ARfD	-azinphos-methyl (068),	
folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		diazinon (022), imidacloprid	
methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		(206), metalaxyl(138),	
methoxyfenozide (209) and carbaryl (8)folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		methomyl (094),	
carbaryl (8)folpet (041) – review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for		-	
folpet (041) - review of the ARfD.indoxacarb(216)-for alternative GAP for			
the ARfD. alternative GAP for	folgot (0/1) review of		
	· · ·		
cabbage head			
		cabbage nead	

	quinoxyfen(223) (meat MRL)	
	bifenazate(219) (meat MRL)	
	thiabendazole(065) (citrus fruit MRL)	

Toxicological evaluations		Residue Evaluations	
New Compounds		New Compounds	
azoxystrobin		azoxystrobin	
chlorantraniliprole		chlorantraniliprole	
mandipropamid		mandipropamid	
prothioconazole		prothioconazole	
spinetoram		spinetoram	
spirotetramate		spirotetramate	
Periodic re-evaluations		Periodic re-evaluations	
bioresmethrin (093)	2009R	lambda-cyhalothrin replacement of cyhalothrin	2007T
buprofezin (173)	2009R	cypermethrins (118)	2006T
hexythiazox (176)		permethrin (120)	1999T
		profenofos (171)	2007T
Evaluations		Evaluations	
carbofuran (096) - review of ARfD (new data available,US)		bifenazate (219)- additional MRLs for citrus fruit, egg plant, tea, watermelon.	
oxamyl (126)– clarification of ARfD (Concern from EC)		boscalid (221)- additional MRLs for hops and kiwifruit	
		chlorpropham (201)- whole milk and milk fat for MRL evaluation	

dimethoate(027) –retrospective alternative GAPs for lettuce head; peppers sweet, update dietary risk assessment	
diphenylamine (030)-whole milk and milk fat for MRL evaluation	
imidacloprid(206)-additional MRLs for avocado, banana, blueberry, cranberry, carrot, coffee, pea, peanut, pomegranate, strawberry, sugar apple, sunflower, tree nuts	
methomyl (094) - retrospective alternative GAPs for cucumber, pear, melons, tomato, grapes and zucchini	
oxamyl (126) – retrospective alternative GAPs for citrus fruits, cucumber, melon, pepper	
spinosad(203)– additional MRLs for banana, cranberry, hops	

Toxicological evaluations		Residue Evaluations	
New Compounds		New Compounds	
fluopicolide		fluopicolide	
spirodiclofen		spirodiclofen	
pyroxsulam		pyroxsulam	
Periodic re-evaluations		Periodic re-evaluations	
bifenthrin (178)	2010R	benelaxyl (155)	2005T
cadusafos (174)	2010R	bioresmethrin (093)	2008T
chlorothalanil (081)	2010R	buprofezin (173)	2008T
chlorpyrifos-methyl (090)		chlorpyrifos-methyl (090)	
		haloxyfop (194)	

ALINORM 07/30/24

cycloxydim (179)	2010R	hexythiazox (176)	2008T
		procymidone (136)	2007T
Evaluations		Evaluations	
		acephate – alternative GAP	Further information
		(mandarine, flower head	for additional
		brassicas)	commodities
			expected from
			manufactures
		fenbuconazole (197) –	
		re-evaluation of the pome	
		fruits CXL; additional	
		CXLs for almonds,	
		blueberries, citrus,	
		cranberries, plums and	
		prunes	
		methoxyfenozide (209) -	
		additional MRLs for bean,	
		blueberry, citrus,	
		cucumbits, papaya, pea,	
		peanut, root crops,	
		strawberry, sweet potato	
		phorate (112) - acute	
		intake for potatoes	
		prochloraz (142) – acute	
		intake for mushroom	
		spices – additional MRLs	

Toxicological evaluations		Residue Evaluations	
New Compounds		New Compounds	
dicamba		dicamba	
Periodic re-evaluations		Periodic re-evaluations	
aldicarb (117)	2011R	amitraz (122)	1998T
dicofol (026)	2011R	azinphos-methyl (002)	2007T
dithianon (028)	2011R	bifenthrin (178)	2009T
fenbutatin oxide (109)	2011R	cadusafos (174)	2009T

	chlorothalanil (081)	2009T
	cycloxydim (179)	2009T
Evaluations	Evaluations	

2011 JMPR

	Residues evaluations	
New Compounds		
	Periodic re-evaluations	
2012R	aldicarb (117)	2010T
2012R	dicofol (026)	2010T
2012R	dithianon (028)	2010T
2012R	fenbutatin oxide (109)	2010T
	Evaluations	
	2012R 2012R	2012Raldicarb (117)2012Rdicofol (026)2012Rdithianon (028)2012Rfenbutatin oxide (109)

Toxicological evaluations	Residues evaluations	
New Compounds	New Compounds	
Periodic re-evaluations	Periodic re-evaluations	
	dichlorvos (025)	2011T
	diquat (031)	2011T
	etofenprox (184)	2011T
	fenpropathrin (185) – maybe earlier, pending data availability	a 2011T
triforine (116)	triforine (116)	

APPENDIX IX

DISCONTINUATION OF WORK ON THE DRAFT CODEX MAXIMUM RESIDUE LIMITS FOR PESTICIDES

	<u>C</u>	<u>commodity</u>	<u>MRL</u>			<u>Step</u>
27 Dimethoate						
VB	0041	Cabbages, Head		2		W
59		on-Methyl				
AL	1020	Alfalfa fodder		70		W
SO		Cotton seed		25		W
OC		Cotton seed oil, Crude		10		W
OR		Cotton seed oil, Edible		10		W
AS		Hay or fodder (dry) of grasses		5		W
GC		Maize		0.1		W
CF	1255	Maize flour		0.05		W
OC	0645	Maize oil, Crude		0.2		W
OR	0645	Maize oil, Edible		0.1		W
AL	0072	Pea hay or pea fodder (dry)		70		W
AL	0528	Pea vines (green)		40		W
SO		Rape seed		0.05		W
OC		Rape seed oil, Crude		0.2		W
OR		Rapeseed oil, Edible		0.2		W
GC		Wheat		5		W
CM		Wheat bran, Unprocessed		10		W
CF		Wheat flour		2		W
AS	0654	Wheat straw and fodder, Dry		10		W
65	Thiaber	ndazole				
FC		Citrus fruits		3	Ро	W
74	Disulfot	ton				
VB	0400	Broccoli		0.1		W
VB	0041	Cabbages, Head		0.2		W
VB	0404	Cauliflower		0.5		W
VB		Cauliflower		0.05		W
VL		Lettuce, Head		1		W
VL	0483	Lettuce, Leaf		1		W
85 Fenamiphos						
VO	0051	Peppers		0.5		W
VO		Tomato		0.5		W
VC	0432	Watermelon		0.05	(*)	W
94	Methon	nyl				
FP	0226	Apple		2		W
100	Methan	nidophos				
VB	0041	Cabbages, Head		1		W
VO		Tomato		2		W
105 Dithiocarbamates						
VO	0445	Peppers, Sweet		7		W
117 Aldicarb						
FI	0327	Banana		0.2		W
VR		Potato		0.5		w

Commodity	<u>MRL</u>	<u>Step</u>
209MethoxyfenozideVL05020502Spinach	50	W